4

e

r

W UNIVERSITEIT VAN PRETORIA
. UNIVERSITY OF PRETORIA
Qe |A

YUNIBESITHI YA PRETOR

COENRAAD DE BUY 3

by

AGATHA ELIZABETH SCHOBBAN
(born Kingdon)

A THESIGS

SUBMITTEL IK FARTIAL FULFILMENT (F THa
REUIKEMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF
WAGTER OF ARTS
in the
FACULTY OF AHTS,

UNIVERSITY OF PRETORLAe

fretoria, 1833.

© University of Pretoria



UNIVERSITY OF PRETORIA
YUNIBESITHI YA PRETORIA

Fad!
N UNIVERSITEIT VAN PRETORIA
&
CONTENTS,

Chapter 1 The Young lian, Coenreaad. 1761-1785

Chapter i1 The Frontiersman,Farmer
and Hunter. 178517985

Chapter 111 kepublican and Lutlaw, 1795=-1798

Chapter IV  The Van Jaarsveld nising
and the .affir Jar., 1798

Chapter V Beyond the Frish Fkiver. 1798-18L3
Chapter VI A Feturn to the Colony.  18G3-1813
Chapter VII Beyond the Crange kiver

and Northwerds. 1814-1828
rhotostat copies of -ue Buyaf éignature. Following
sxtracts from Cpgaafrollen,irasaff heinet "
sketeh Lap of De bBuys' Trek in 1801 "

Ixtracts from (pgaafrollen,.iwellendam
&nd George. "

Eibliography. ‘ "

L]

31
45
68

10
30
62

82
o8



UNIVERSITY OF PRETORIA
YUNIBESITHI YA PRETORIA

-

=

w UNIVERSITEIT VAN PRETORIA
Qe

CHAPTER I

The Young ilan, Coenraad. (1761 - 1786)

The blood of the French refu.ees and of the
pioneer Luteh colonists met in Coenrasd de cuysy and
this blending produced in him a man in whos the
characteristics of both races were Intuusified aimost
to a fault. |

Ee was the forerunner of a new type of .outh
african =~ the stolcally brave, funutically independent
trekker, with his chilalike falth in Gud's word - but like
all new typesa, new patterna, he possessed the traits of hias
successors in a more marked, & more crude deyree., In hipr
bravery wes reckless dag;ng, independence was lawleschesas,
and his reliiion was a mass of inconeistencies,

His was a‘restleaa adventurous spirit which the
conventionalities of civilized life coulu not confine,
although his gelfegufficiency wﬁs not conmplute enouch to
free him from the necessity of obaerving the outward formy
of the religzion of his fathera,. wccording to his son,
kichael, his fatier read to then regularly from & big kible,
prayed on his kneos and spoke to them about Lod's wvrdol'

| He anticipated .ouis Trichardt in his attempt to
lead a Trek to welsgon kay by almost forty years and he
travelled further ané more extensively than any white nan
of his time in the Interior of Louth ~frica. kis

sl

ancestry is not at £ll rewariable.”

le we Hofmeyre Twintig Jaren in de Trungvaal pe.9

Se Ior the du iuls famlly sve Cele de Viiliers. uld
Cape famiiles Volel pec7¢ This reference will not
be repented arain when uged later.
The will o Elgje Hofman (0.Cel0 F0.63 .eleTe) 8180
pentions all ner children and grancehildrene.
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Coenraad's great-granafather, Jean du vuis, an

l; came to the Lape from

e riculiurslist ana vinedresser
Lralaie in‘16882, 80 poor that he had to recaivm.aaaiatanee
from the eatavian fund.® e married here .arah Jacob,
tiie dauphter o. ancther ?&fuﬁﬂ64¢ Their son Jean was
christened in 1708 and in 1730 he married zlsje lofman,

~ For nearly forty yoars Coenraad's grancparents
hegld the loun famm bergfontein on this side of the Jourits
river® and progressed so that at Jgean du wuis' death in
L1779 the sale of the estate realised nearly 6,90Q‘rixda11ar!
The aize of their establislment can be Jjudped by the fact
that they had nine slaves,who fetched 1,852 rixdollars at
the sale.€ They were stoekfaruers too, as there are
records of thelr renting other loan farms for prazing
.purpoaea.?

Loenraad’'s fa@hur vean, usually called Jan, was

ceriotenvd in 1730 and in 176C he married Christina
seheepers, a widow with%five chil&rene, who was eight
years hig senlior, ghé could write a fair hanﬂ9 and
must have been a lady o some charms as she was married

16

four tincs. The chiluren of this ourriame, however,

dere Lwo daughters and Lhree sonG, doOhannes, Coenraad
and Frederick ietrusge

Coenraad's parsnts belonged to the congregation
of "'t wangd vau saveren” but they brought him to be
christenadin capetown on the L4th (ctober, 1762. The
spunsors, his gou, arents, were Jan Lus, an uncle by

. . 1
Cmarriage, ane Geertruy ulnnie, his halfsisters

le Coseothas “he rroench rwefupees at the Lape . o . p &0

s wolenbrander, ffkomst der .oeren pe 4.

Se.Thenl's ulstory Volell pe 340,

4. Lolenbrander, ibid pe.be

Be 0eGel0 pe 331=334 .eCaTe

6e 04413  Vendue hollen L7/88 Lec.1?779

7. -~ nuobter of these in the Cude Jildschutte bocien €eaile
-...ao‘:‘!ol:;’ M.GOEC’ -.3.":;.22 etc.

By Cele de V., 1bid vo. 11 p. 385,

Qe TeCel3y31 July 17€9 .C.Te inventory signed“Christina
..¢hepe:r*

1GOC‘IC. e Ve ibid ol 111, po;uﬁ

11, voopboek heDe 106, Church archives, C.Te
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Coenraad was rnamed after Christina's father, Coenraad
&cheep&rs.l at his ciristening he must have been at leaat
a yetr old, as in July 1769 his age ic yiven as eight yaaraz,
80 he was born in 17¢€1, probably on the farm .agenbooms
vivier, bLehind the Copuants Kloofs¥
vart of his childhood was apent on his father's
loan farm, de sgelsjagt, as they had the opstel(buildings)
thored but his father dled in 17696. etill a poor man.
his estate realized only 743 ilds and he huo no slaves and »
only the barest necessities in the way ot household utenailsq
The same year Coentuad's half gister, . curtruy
sinnie, married Lavid Jenekal and the follosing year
Coenraad's mother followed her axumple and mgrried wavid's
younger brother, Jacou senekale ’
s#here Coenraad spent the rest of ﬁis childhood
is net known, but he ceﬁtainly had & littie achomiing and
learnt to write, either from the usual itinerant echoole-
magter, or from his mothers
it the age of twenty-one, Coenruad was living
with his godmother, Guertruy, and .avid wnekal in the
wiellendam district, i@ worked as "knegi"” or ovirseer
for his brotier-in-law, for a half’ shure of tne butter,
which wus to be tuxen Lo Lapetown with wencril's wuggon
and oxens Afrer six montns he left anu sued ounekal for
his suare,but lost the cases  Hereupon be appesled to the
Council of Justice at the Cape, tut the case was brought
before the Landdrost aggein, and this time senekal was ordere
ed to take the butter to the Cape at the rirst opportunity

and 1o pay the cwsta.g

le Cole d8 V, Vol i1 pe. 384.
Le Celow 13 InVﬂntU!‘:{ 31 JUI}' 17€9 el eTe
e el 16 p 429, larm reglatered 8 Lec. 1761,
de weGe 17 p 1lvle larm taken &85 larch 17€C ««CeTe & Ibid(Z)
& LOOdregister 1768 « 1796 hove 1762 /i aCeTs
€. ibid 2. :
70 UCeCoe Ge Vo Vol I11 LSQ.
€. wwellendnn 1. oinutes of ianddrost & Leemradien
19 JUHG, 176, veCeTle
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After this little family dispute, Coenraad must have decided
to follow his elder brother's exampie and go faruinge. hLie
took on loan, for one yuar, the farm Jjust left by Johannes,
"de brakke rivier, aan de Lange Cloof en over de attaguas
cloof"s} e was of age, and had probubly receivéd from the
orphan chamber his share of his futher's and grandparents'
estatese

The end of the Company's rule wns a period of
trouble and strife between the free vurghers and the officials
at the Cape. Lemorinls of complaint wer: drawn up and
tazen to amsterdan by e deputation who wore to luy them
before the seventeen, it is certain that Coenraad de buys
took & keen interest in this controvursy; becsuee one of the
yoinits in the kemorial of 1772 referred to his uncle
Jacobus de buys. The aemorial states (in article 3) that
Jacobus van .taden and Jacobus de vuys complained at the Cape
to the Iiscal of the conduct of the Landdrosty of uwallenéam.
The Fiscal had them arrested promptly, and for one year they
rémainad in prison, after which they were roleased without
wrial and without any compensation for thelr loss of honaur;
gooda and cattle. The‘ﬁﬂmorialieta added, that to that day
no one knew what their cfime had been.

It apjpears that the ianddrogt had written to the
cape, complaining that these two burghers had entered his
houce and hud Lehaved in a very violent menner, having
cursed, puahed and beaten him. Pe buye had even fired
his jun &t hime The Flscal had veen instruicted to ine-
vestlrate and to punish the offenders, who were to be taken

into custody, as soun as posaible.L

le Gele 29 PebY AsCaTe

e Co Beyerss oie Kaapse ratriotte p. 18
hesolution of the Council of rolicy (€ Layyl770. K0.C.€64,
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Although Coenrcad was only a child when his uncle was
imprisoned (1772) we may be sure that the subject was
agrain heatedly diacussed in Lis family circle at the
time of the Memorials (17781782, e hud thus,

no doubt, learnt his lesson of dissatlsiaction with, and
oppoaition to authority by the time he followgd his

brother to the far eastern front fer in 1785,
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The rrontivrsnan - carmer anc munter (1785-1765)

in 1701, the white population ¢ the Ceye
nuctbered 1266 souls, living on the peninsula and in
the diatricts of otellenbosch, wrakenstein and wwellendam.
by 1793, the new district of “ireaffeleinct hud bteen formsed,
and the population had increased to 13,830.  This Increuge
in nunbers had resulted in the free burghers penetrating
rradually farther into the i{ntericr In seurch of fresh
pasturage for their stock, The advance did not proceed
by short stages, which would have resulted 1n‘a closely
knit urea of settlement. : Instead, it proceeded by leaps
and'bounda, which left certuin arems sparsely setiled, or,
with ohly a roving populstion duriny the rainy season.
The reason wasg, that ths foremost irekkers, aftoer
leaving the more fertile coast regions, were checked by
the inhospitable harrco, with its perledic and uncertain
rainfally this split the stream of advuncs into t-o main
iines, one goiny emst alonr the acuthérh coast, to the Fiah
biver, and the other line golng in the'aame direction,
skirting the ;arroo to the north, went througn the Ghoup
and Camdebo to the truintjes livogte. |
in order to keep control of ite subjects
the Company was roluctantly compelled te extend its
vouriaries from time to timey, 30 A3 to include the outer=
woat trekkers, who, in spite of proclamations, would settle
beyona the limits.
Sruintjes lioogte, with the sler and Gamtoos
rivers formed the eastern bouncary in 1700, and this was
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extenued to the upper I'ish and sushuen's rivers in 1775,
in 1778 Flettenbergs ceacon mar ed the north custern corner
of the getltlement and by nis arrangement with avie Xosa
chiefs, the line was extended to the Orest rish river,
this bedng confimied by the council of :olicy in 1780,
‘hen the drostdy was eatablished at Sraaff-. einet in
1786 the farms dlmg; the Tarka were included, The
lgpact with the Aosas, who were moving in a westerly
direction alony the ccast, stopped furt’ur eastward
expansion for a few decaded.
The fapis lying within reasscnable diatance

from the Cape, procuced wine anc graln, odut transport
aifficulties made this unprefitable for the more distant
distriects, whure stock~furming was the rule. Lorses were
bred for their own use anc sheep und cattle woere raised for
sale Lo the licensed butchers, who sent tiwir gyents to
colluet these in the ocutlyin district. dhen Lhe
burghers could get into town, they sela thelr buttur and soap
there. ‘

- The loan place gystem sulted tnese people very
well, as it enabled them to lead a semi-nomad existence
in asearch of suitable gruzing grounds for thelr stocke.
in graaff-;einet all farms were occupied on the loan place
system, which tmunt that on the payment of 4 .da. rent,
the fammer could cccupy a farm, about 3U0C morgen in
extent, for one yuar, The lesse could be renewed ennually,
and in preetice he could remain on it indefinitely,
althouph actually the goverament could claim resumption

at any time, granting compemsation for the “opstal®,
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or bulldings - 4 any. This, however, aﬁldoﬁ happened,

Cn the frontiers, especially, the ;roblem
of dealing with the wild Bushmen had always been acute,
They had no tribal system, 8o treaties were out of
tne question and ruthless extermination wus the rule.
To this was now added t.e problem of the ceamling with
the woaas on the south eastern frontier. .8 eurly as
176.. Koga strogglerg had aavancea ag far west as
tue tish river and by 1779 they had already uade a
evrious incursion over this river, but by 1721 they
were driven back and such chiefs aus there were,
proiiised Lo recognise toe rFish river as thelr boundary.

A8 esrly as 1771 the old elephiant hunter,
+illen rrinsloa,'had settled on the banks of the little
cish river (where womerset sast now stenas) and had
refused to return within the limits. ne was
folluwed by olinmrs, and in 1778 the farswers of the
Jeeusberg and castern frontelr begged ven slettens
verg for the wstablishment of a drostdy and a church
nearer to thew as they were often obliged to travel a
menLll to reach the nearegt drostdies at .tellunbosch
ur Lwellendanie

in 178€ the bounduries of the new district
were fixed andé & cdrostdy, named SGreaff-reiney, established
on the banks of the .unday's rivﬁr.‘ The first
lanudrost, berman (tte «oeke, proved eventu:lly to have
Leenn an waforiunate choice, as he became lale and
alagolutes. |

| The funds for the district were raised

chiefiy by & suwall tax on cattle and sheep,
based on the numbers given at the annual “opgsaaf",

wilitary or police force there was none,
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the government supplying powder and lead cnly, for
defence agminst the natives, Heemraden were
chosen Trom the district to form a board to assist
the landdroast. Veldwagtmeesters were chosen
from among the burjshursa, to keep order in their
words and 1o noake periodic rejport to the landdroste
~hen neceassary, & burgher comando was called out to
gesl with native inroads.

1t cen be readily imagined that only the
moat hardy ana sulfrelianf men went to this district
and thrat they scon developed a grest independence of
spdrit and, often, a disreyrard for auth.rity, ao
vigtant as to be aliogl useless to then in any crfsea.
in aiditicn, many a¢rvants, sallors and soldiers,
discharved Ly the Company, were peruitted to take up
land there, and, ag they were not always of the most
omierly type of wuropeans, they often exercised & not
altogether bencficial influence on thelr mores unsophisti-

catcd neighbours, the colonial norn.t

1. The facts for this ahiort survey of thw conditions
i the district in which Coenraad was now to llive have been
el fron e

arice alker. nistorical ntlas,

{a)

(b) Theals Aiat@ryo YOole 1ile

(c) C. Beyera. .ie inmgse Fatriotte.

\’.d) Wle Aedae VAN dued Blt, ‘wie Ausdehnung‘ LooJder

solonie wm sap der Juten boffnung i770-1770.
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Johannes de iLuys took up land over the PBushman river
in l?&ﬁl and was soon followed Ly his younger brother

Coenrsad, and his uncle sotrus de :uysﬁg #ho e¢ach reglstered

a loan farm, Coenraad's beling &r&ndw&gt.d

vulldingswere belng put up at the new drostdy
and in 1787 Coenraad supplied them with 1500 feet of yellows

wood planks for which he siyned a recelpt for CBU &66.4

254 T S

iIn 17¢8 he signed, as a wluwas, a declaration in a cese

in which he had no further concern, but this siimeture con-

firre the earlier ona.5

His troubles with the keffirs begean alumost as
Buon &s he cume to the .uurveld, for on &l karch 1788 he
received this leiter i-

"hespected Cousin Coenrand de buys,

1 have to inform you thet .anga let you kan
that he desires payrent from you for beating his caffre,
otherdise he will Im-ediately come agnin becuause that is
a challénge and the Christians must not think he is afraid
to Rake wars This he made known in presence of Gert
knoetze, with compliments from us all 1 as your uncle

setrus de i%:uys."ﬁ

e Gee 3o po £31 AelaTe

2. cele 33 Pe 20‘9 &OCGT.

3e oelie B3 Po D AeleTe

d, Gre its 320 <6 kay 1787 & Qreite B9 o July 1787, AdCsT.

Be Grs 11e 434 LU 424 AeCaTe

€. 1837 aeleTe This volumwe lu one of about a dozen,
containing coples, eéxtracis, notes etc. collected by
¥re Lin Mouodie from documents relerring Lo the treutment
of the natives, unly a goall portion has Leen
published (The record « « o) The coples etc. are not
arrangced chronole: -icalily nor on any other plsn, often
appearing more than once in different volumes, and
sometimes without giving any clue as to where they were
found., The oripinals of most copies can be tound but
there are a number which can not be found in che
arehives now, @0 he is useful at times., #oodle also

gives reapons for sore of the deficiencies in the

Graaff -eilnel pupers, which are fsr from comploete.
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Langa was the chief of the .mambala tribe and
was 10 becoma de buys' Inveterate enemy,

At the end of this year Coenraad was suanioned
to pay his arrears of taxes, "schapen en beecstengeld",
3 schellin-s, but as.he did nou appear, he was debited
with coata.l

At this time too, de buys made himself uilty
of forrery. The original record of the military court
cannot be found, but koodie givea the following 'Lubstance”
of tie proceedin; s i-

A deputation of faruers from the ..uurveld brought

a wri;ten complaint duted 11 August 178E, concerning
the thefts of the xaffirs, which they could no lon.ser
- endure, saying that theyvyoulu be obliged to attack
the kaffirs and recover their cattle, The deputius
alleged that this letter was a forgery, they had not
8igned 1t. The real complaint "of nearly the same
tenor" was then brought in. Coenraad de isuys admitted
that he had falsified the compliaint. € buys had
written the two petitions. That bearing the real
signatures contained no announcement of an intention to
attack the kaffirs, which the other did, w8 DBuys sald
that having nade sbme mistakes in the original he
thought it no harm to transeribe it and siygn ‘the names,

but his excuses were considered "frivolous"* by the board.

1. Cre hte 5BBs 5[0e 7 AeCoTa

Qe s00die gives one copy of the butch petition and
two .nglish trunslations showing the alteration
made by de iuyBe There were ten siymatorics,
one of them Coenraad's uncle letrus. Coenrnad
was one of those whose cattle had been stolen,
50e 952 and Koe 1937, AeCoTe
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Years later saynier gave evidence to the
Coudclasioners of sastorn wnquiry that ke had found a letter
frum the Jecretary wsagener, in the absence of the lLanddrost,
at Uraaff preineg » that the poers, particulsrly C. tuls CeSa,
under pretence thot the Caffres had comw-itted depredations,
continually insisted to form a Commancde aguinst the Laffres,
that he,(the secretoary) had csused enouirdes to be made
whether thelr compleints were well grounded and found that
they werc not, but merely amdvanced for the purpuse of
enriching themselves with the plunder from the (affres™,

" Thia letter, maynier saya, he sent to the Cape with his
report (1794 %) but 4 have not been able Lo trace 1td

mooule comnents on this by sayin: that raynier did not
explain that asgenerts iettnr wns based on the interpolation
added by du puys, which wus only discovered lateraa

a3 Maynier is apparently quoting from memory
and gives no date for the letivr no conclusion can be
reacted as to the exact time the letter referred to when
¢ buis,"cun suis"™ wighed for a commnando,

in garch 1789, the Acsas under Langs and
Cungwe invaded the suurveld; the farmers fled and lost
soe of thelr cuttle, The landdrost called out a
Conmando, tut orders were received from the Cape that war
was 10 be avoided and the burghers were forced to withdraw

without puniahing the invadwra.a

l. uaynier‘s kHeport to Comwissioners of wastern inguiry
18.3-1837 blue ook 1836 Vo L pl.iB

hoe D5 AeleTe

=
-

3
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Ce 85 nesolution U rerch, 1789,
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according to the instructions, the retiring
sucretary and hHonoratius Mayniaf, nowly appointed sceretary,
interviewed the chiefs and the Uoverinunt was satisfied
with the truce, although the fermers were note  Cungwe
clafmed the land as far as the fowie riVJr,'aaying that
they had bought it from "the onas hottwntot, Lapn. iuitern!
who Lased his right on @ short occupsation.

ruiter, alos called Ceptaln wuiter ilaatje or
Kohle, wus a freebooter of mixed hottentol and rnushmen tlood,
who collected a pang of thieves of these two reces round
him, lie robbed the Kosug on the Floh river until his
followers deserted him, when he made Common cruse with the
xos&s;‘ea;ﬁciﬁlly Lhakka, |

in ueptember, 1789, we find Coenruad registering
a new loan farm,,De Lriefontenien, on the bushman rivar‘a
This may have been due to the Xosa invasion, but only six

months later he registers another piece of land, Bosch-

fontein, betwesn the puslomn . and §unday's.rivers, near the

Seie? te did not cancel the gf&nta ot the First furns

and so remsined liable for the rentd of all three pluces.

The reason for this move was probubly due to the
fact that in february 179, “Capitein huyter ilaatje"
had moved his stock on to (Coenraad's landg Rulter suid

re had Coenrsad's permission to do this.® 1his lends colour

to later accusations aguinst de buys.

l. Urekte 589, sinute 3 1ugel780 AaCaTe ,

Le Theals pistory vol.lll p.l8l. and ur.kt 685, & number
of letters July/auge 179U, Lucas seyer to Landdrost
ﬁ‘LOCCTl ]

3¢ wee 36 po CEB alCeT

4. w.{;. 36 p' 391 f"‘c.?‘ '

e Trelts 434, £5 nov 1781. 0.CeTe “sekere streck lands asn
de pogjesmansrevier” in mirgin,
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A few months lut.r aptain .akka (Charka)
visited the Veldwugtmeestier of hushmans .f{ver with .uiter
rlatje and thirty kaffiras, keyer ¢ic not wish to ceuae
& disturbence o did not taxke «ulter's gun from him, as
the nottentot promised o hand it over to the landdrost.
The Gorna Hottentots were giving troudble and he continues
"maer van petrus lommir heeft de aaffafs 41 beesten wege
genomen doe hy naar de ksap gereeden was en twee slave jongens
van ‘'van reenen en een hottentot van hannis buys en heef de
capityn sakka uytgestuur ns coenraad buys en doen heeft de
andere schelme alomme uyt haer lieden uyt gevliugt maer
waerheen dat weeten se nlet regt maer haer prissomuatsie
is dat sy na dle bossicemans revier in ale dikke toasen
soud weesen en de naam van die capleteyn die bosslesmans
revier overgetrokken is heet tietie mat de Gonnas".t

It i3 nou cleur what be swsns, but it looks as

thouyt: Chakka expected to find the culprits on Coenrsad's

5
land or he wanted help {rom :latjes gang there,

a list of defauliers for loan faru rents,dated
August 1792, wasz drawn upe. LY this time Coneraad owed rent for
6 yosrs and § months for brandwagt, & year &nd 11 months for
e briefonteinen and a year and & mohths for boschfontein - a
total of Lid fds,.o fle was not the wovat defaulter though.
woodle gives a list of the detailed iInformstion, collected Dy
“the Commigsioner Cu,3. de det from the officiating Landdrost

and Heemraden, regardins arrears of rsunt due¢ on loan farms,

1. Gre Kte 173, lLucas kKeljer tc "Landrots" 28 July 179C.
Aol eTs

2. ruiter's gun is referred to in several letters from
Lucas Yeyer at this tize, as he had shot another
chief's sun.

3e G'e e 48 H0B 277' 454, 481, AalaTo
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with his duelsions in each caue, a8 to whether they could
pay or not. tis informution on Coenrasad's case is
"Rulned by the kafirs the bulldinse on his farms snd all
his roods burned, alllhia cattle stolen, he, buys, now
wandering in poverty". 1 |

A Brest oiany of these‘defnultﬁra were Lo be
excuses from payment owing to their losses from the kaffer
depredations.

in Jeptember 1792 Comnelis van novyen writes

that unieaa trhe landdrost can settle & quarrel tetween
Coenrasd de puys and the kaffirs there will be trouble, as
he cannot errange i{te Coenraad kad made freqguent come
plaints againat the kaftfirs, saying that they had stolen
fifty of his caitle. They replied that they had not
stolen, but had tuken the fifty cattle out of de Luys'
kraal, which were their own, und not his.  Fkurther, they
said de Huys had taken two oxen from Captain .aka (Chakka)
for which he st still pay them. They had heard that
de buys wished to fetch more cuttle and wanted to know
how they should act if he insisted on taking cattle to
gomplete the nuuber lost. van rnooyen gives no opinion
as to who was in the right ip the mauiter, and no decision
on the cuse can be found, {oenraad had told szarend
windeque ang Oreyur that he had caught a thief redhanded
sleughtering one of Christoffel botha's cattle, but on
taking him to his chief he pot no satisfoction but had to
g0 qulietly away { 3

in ceptember 1783, itanddrost Jovke was dls-
missed and the secretary, saynier, was sppointed
provisional landdrost. e was 50 unpopular that
1. vooudies sxtracts 1789 - 1800 (no serial number)
we Greite HBE. sugust 1798 dumagred. & translation in

.ooaies Lue 1937 duted 3 epe. 1782

3¢ Greite S58Be Teie iwreyer to Landt. and silitary
wificers. 9 June 1792+ #e¢CaTe
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when his appointment became definite several members of
his board left the room,1
The kaffir depredstions had nevur ceased, and

when the farmers heard of his usppointment, & commando
under sarend windeque took the law into their own hands and
recovered about 80U cattle, half of which went to ddlambi. ,
who had given them sssistance, and the rest they kept
for themselves. The tribpes who had been attacked
retaliated and invaded the colény, laying farms waste as
far s swartkops river, murdering men and tokine their
cattle. waynier went to interview thé chiefs who promised
to retire, but would not restore any catile. A8 soon as
e left they continued plundering.

| seanwhile, on orders from the Cupe a coumando
from wwellendam was asdvancing and iiaynier too, took the
field with his burghers, none of whom would congent to act
&6 commandant under him. The two coumandos united in
ueptember# and about 2uV men appeared before Laynier's tent
uncer the "insubordinate" leadership of de buys, demanding
~ that Laurens de Juger of ~wellendam should take command,
They hoped, suid maynier, to have & freer rcin against
the kaffirs, put on this point he would not glve way.3

A little fighting was done, some ciéttle recovered

and Ndleabl wie visited at his kraal, Le promised to
collect and restore the rest of the cattles.  rurther
attempts were made to clear the .uurveld, butl in Hovember
the Commando was disbanded, «lthough the burghers were
very dissatisfied with the terms of peace and plundering
recomnenced before the Jwellendum burghers had reached
1. Ureite 6588, .inute 6 say 1794 .1eCeTe
e Theuls History vde L1l pe 2817-227,

3e Cell® iesolution 9 kay 1784. for vayniers report
on the Causes of the war, duted 31 warch 1794,
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thelir homea.1

aynier was nsked to yrepare & report on the
causes of the war, which he didf “ne esnnot help being
struck Ly the fapt that he nentions, in detall, all the
misGeeds couitted by the burghers that he could think
of, past and present, but did not specify any of the
thefts and murders cormitted by the kaffirs, which mizht
have led to the war. lie had sufficient of these
complaints to choge from out of the veldwagtueesters
reporta and many of them have as good grounds for belief,
or better, then the campiaints he quotes ageinst .
de Buys. he lays sll the blame for the war on the
colonists, who crossed the rilsh sdver in disregurd of
rroclamations, who treded cattle with the kaf'firs, or,
took theam into their service and then illtreated them.

A substantisl port of these charges is airected
againgt Coenraad de puys i

"pehoren de voorsgde. ongelukkige ruptures
der Caffers noaar insien van den underpetde. 0ok wel voors
numentlik te worden geattributeerd san het gedrag van den
burgher Coenraad de suljs en aan de herhaalde wmishandeling-
en door denselve auan den anderzints 80 beraisonneerde
en vreedlievende huatie, by asanhoudenheid pepluegds”
This is a big charpe tu;make apainst one mun, weking him
éhiafly reaponsible for the war, The reasons he plives
are thoege t=

The (a4, tains togora nnd sarkotie complained,
at the drostdy, that de buys had tsken thelr wives (wijven)
and cattle Trom them.

1. Theal {bid.
~e Cs 1lU6, hesolution. § ~ay 1794,
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The Captain Langa, when = prisoner at sdlambils
kraal in kovember 1783, told Xaynier, in the presence of
three burgher witnesses, that the deeds cummitted by him
against the Christians were solely out of revenie for
de muys' behaviour s he had noi scrupled to take .unga's
wife with violence and use her as his wne langa‘'s eons,
Thell and Rama, ad confirmed this in the presence of Kr,
Faure, the landdroast of uwellencame

The christened bastsrd nottantot, Jerrit Coetzee,
stated that, on the pretext of hunting elephants, de Euys
was wont Lo g0 emong the kaffirs and teke from them such
cattle ws he funcled. These wore driven to his farm ana
if the kaffirs pratﬁated.he mude them lie on the ground
and punishéd them severely (tussehen leven en dood had
Jguatraft). Further, de buys gave the Lottentots
ilatye ond riqueur orders to fire on the kaffire, and the
former hed thus killed five anc the latter four. tie
encloses a declarution of the ﬁottentot Fletje who told
of de ruys' gross illtreatmentlu

e now come to what the "Shristians" say of him,
The veldwagtmeesters, errit Hendrik Leutenbe;r, Hendrik
Janse vun rensburg and Joharnes »rnoldus Lotma reported,
thut when the last commando attacked the kaffirs they
called out that 1f Coenraad de buys, Coenruad bezuldenhout
and Christoffel botha, who were the chief causes of the
war, were removed from the 001oﬁy the hostilities would
ceuse, these nen having stolen thelr women ang posséssed
them(hebbernde husne meiden ontrcofd en tot hun bezit
gebruikt)

i, Unfortunately the original report together with

the enclosures camot e fourkie «a8s this
the same Flatje referrcd to above g
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Gerrit Herdrik hautenbeg and sose of his
neighbours had thought of lodging a written complaint
agking for de bBuys' banishment, and msutenbag had been
told by the Costhuizens, who lived nesar de buys, that
Captain Chakka had complained bitterly to them the
previous year of de buys' illtreatment (mishandelingen).
The veldwagtreeuter of uwsrtkop's hdver, in whose ward
Coenraad lived, stated that he had received complaints
from the kaffirs that de suys vontinually illtreated them.

tn the last comsando he had been the leader of
thoge who demanded that iaynler should give the commend to
Laurens de Jager.

several years before,de psuys had presented a
document signed by a number of people comgdiining of
troubles ceused them Ly the kuffirs. (n evxamination it
proved thut de buys hiumself had forged the names 0f these
people, for which hé¢ was reprimanded. This maynier
found in the resolutions of the "hrygsraaden van Uraffe
twynet",l

| +shen saynier returned to the drostdy early in
1793, dogcra, Karkotle and th: hottentots Adam Vogel and
#illem tiwesbeck came to compluin of de puys, Upon this,
a letter wsas sent to himg pointing out his serious and
punishable offence anu he w»ihs orderes to angwer for hia
conduct at the drostdy. The heemraad entrusted with
the 6911Very of thie note had neglected his duty snd de
buya'thus continued to hamry the kaffirs to the uttsTLost.

saynier addec that .tephanus ferreirs, the old

heemraad of Jwellendam, told saure that he had no <doubt
l. This resélution camnotl be found now, but woodie glves

the "gubsteice” of Lbe resolution in his La.

.collection in the archives under the date 9 leb,
17590 2’60. 95;& and .NQQ 1937. is..(.’.!‘.
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hostilities would cease if de buys were banished.

in how fuar was de puys guilty of all these
charges aguinst him Y  He was never tried, so no
decislon was given by any competent Court. ¢ cannot
help thinking here of the result of the investi =tion
of the charges)brought in by need and van der Kemp in
181z, |

it ie impossible now, to discover therelinbility
pf taynier's witnesses, Hud they speciul reasons for
dialiking ce kuys % sere competent interpreters used
in the cuses concerning natives % #e do kno# that
‘maynier had a grudge sgeinst de suys for he writes th&t,as
a regult of his insubordinate belaviour in the matter of
iaurens de Jager, another burgher tasunted him(maynier) in
the hearing of several others at 4 public sale, thut t e
bturghers had refused to obey him on Commando.

The forgury of the complaintis undoubtedly true
and this shows de bBuys Lo be untruatwdrthy;but this does
not prove that ull his accusers were more trustworthy than
he. He wig undoubtedly violent but he muy have had
much provocatione. The charge of taking kaffir women
wes made by dliferent chiefs mna judging from his later
career seeha very likely to have been the truth,

Keynier was privetely instructed to collect
necessary evidence against de wpuys for the riscol, s0 that
a good caae could be oade ajainst him when he wag triad.l
he wus td tell no one of this, and the extract re¢solutions
sent to uraaff heinet thercefor refer only to carend
rLindeque and the others, de buys' name not being mantien&d.z

waynier, however, had his hands full in the

district, where diseatisfaction agpainst him becune so strong

l. ¢C. 106 resclution 9 Hay, 1794, ACeTe

2y Greiits axtract sesolution O may, 1784+ AeleTe
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that he was expelled from the drostdy in redbruary, 1798.
A Com:ission under Lr. U.0e de wet, after collecting
some evidence, suffered a like fate and Uresaff heinet
proceeded to govern itself,

in June bwéllendam followed their example and
in this month too, an English fleet arrived and took
possesslon of the Lape in the name of the otadtholder,
then a refusree in &ngland.l

1t de buys had changed his weys at this time,
his history among the kaffirs would have bLeen forgotten.
The principl&a of the revolution in rrence, however, hLad
reached the Cape, withess the “National Conventions” in
the revolted districte and the wearing of the national
Cockade, so that (ralg wrote, "the great body of the
pecple sre at this moment infected with the rankest
poison of Jacobinism®, ietters were received siyned
by the "Voice of the ratriotick Feople" and disaffection
was rife among the military.z

ve puys himself lived in a district where this
feelins was most active. ‘The surgeon ﬁoyeraand the
schoolmaster Campagne4, both men of some education, were
the chief agitators there, and de buys, from his very
nature, would be inclined io support such doctrines and so
add political agitation to robbery and violence among the

natives,

1. Thealk nistory vVol. i4I

Be  h@Ce LoeCe Vol po 154. Letter Jraig to nte ion. He
Lundas 22 ﬁ@pq 179050

3. #0049 Letter Lralg to .andt. raure &4 June,l766€,

4. eCe Cule V0l. i pe4cB. Letter Cralg to .m.luskisson
3 vsl.w’l?g&- k
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hepublican anc Cutlaw. (17956 - 1798,

swellendam gave up its republican government and
submitted to the .nglish within a monthl, tut the
Graaff reinet burghers, although they had written to

<

s Al g
terwral Creig explaining their actions, were not so
amennble, Mr'e Yale Bresler, who wus sent as their new

landdrost, was expelled from the drostdy and the british

3

flag he had holsted was pulled down. Troops were theree

fore pougted in readiness to subdue them and all supplies

were cut off from the ﬂistrict.4

Not content with their own refusal to submit,
the more wiruly element ﬁecideﬂ to march to uwellendam and
expel all office holders there who haa taxen the oath of
allegiauce.s ianddrost Faure informed Cralg that he was
prepared to resist the rebels and that the wife of heewrsad
Ferreira had reported that the majority of ths rebels cane
from the duurveld, beyond the vamtoos river, and that they
had been called up by Coenrcad de puys ahd Gerrit dendrik
rautenbach®, Kost of the Juurveld furmuers had been
forced to atandm their homes after the kaffir depredations
and were living in the Long Kloof with friend or rﬂlationéa
une of the rerreira's was asgsoclated with the rebela® so
the woman's inforuzation was probably correct,

Their attempt to win Lack owellendam, however,
came t0 naught as wraig was able to report that it had
le HE@Ce Letie VOls 1 pe C68 Letter craic to rte Honsolr.

He iundas £7..ec. 1796,

Do ) 26. Letter ur.ite burghers o vraig «7.lct. 1796,

3. BU 6. Lettersbresler o Laaig ¢ ¥arch 1706 and
C€ May  1796. AeCaTs
HECs Lele VOlad po 36E. Letter Nraig to vundas 21,
11})?11 1796,
4, 1ibvid p.da& wetter (ralg to vundae 1. ~pril, 1786,
Be 12Ce Lole Volels Do 338 Letter (raig Lo Lunvus 8,
m(‘&mh 1?96.
Co alle n“;o Letter raure 1O ulfiig ll, rareh 1796.
7v @0, Cote VOled PedOB. bre@sler 1o Cruds C79.8¢ 41706,
£. 1ipid. ps 478 vome burghers of Gr.k7. $o Craig
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teen decided at a meeting of the most violent of the
populer leuders, thet they would submit to the governe
ment .+

Uranff reinet, howev:r, continued to govern it=
self until the oddale of the followine year,

4@ now find the first evidence of Loenrsad de
puys acting as emmissury to the kaffirs. n the l4th
- June he made his report to a combined meeting of bufﬁhﬁr;
wilitary officers, heemraden, snd the Landdrost, appaint@a
by the cistrict, Carl derotz. e steted th-t he had
pacified the kaffirs ms much as pousible. iie then asked
whom he was to obey, the Landdrost end heeqraden or the
Lurgher ganse van rensbury, as it sevemed thet all must
submit to this men, who di¢ as he plesseds 1t complained
that van censburg harboured rogues who were murderers
Geserving death, suck as #m. nasfelbek (Huasbek’) whom
the court had demanded from him several times without effet

he was assured that the matter would dbe
investigated and was thanked for his joou intentions as
regerds the kaffirs and aszed to spsre no zeal in futher
endeavours in this ﬁﬂ%t@rug
1t 1s not cleer whether Coenraud hud been asked

to deal with the kaffirs or noi, but appurently the
meeting wes gutisfied with his intervertion and willing
for it to continue. it appears thus, thet, although some
burghers gave evidence to mayniar against him, there
were othurs who approved of his methods with the natives,
nor can ke have Leen s uapopuler with all the natives
ns he wos with ransa's tribe,.

1t must not be forgetten thoush, that, cut off

l, 10ce Cola VOled pe 383. Craig to Lundas 1 spril, 1796,
2e Grefite &9ue  ildnutes 14 vune, 1796+ ..oCoTs
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from their usual supply o%im munition as they were, the

men in charge at Yraaff rvelnet would be only too willing to
use any means of preserving peace with the Xosas, and that
it wus not every one who would venture among the tribes in
thelr ungettled state os de buys and his friends were wont
L0 doe  4e hear no more of his this year,

The van rensburg Coenruad complained of wus
probably nerdrik ga&nse van rensburg. s uncle had
marricd Coenrsad's aunt and so by the easy relationships
of the wouth African they rerarded each other as cousins.
rendrik himself married Coenrsad's niece, the daughter of
Jolisnnes de muys.l

seanwhile, Graaff ceinet was t@&lihg the &itecta
of the blockade. soyer ulea, pesred frum the aietrlct ’

3

vampagne wag captured and deported“, and they were dise

appointed in thelr efforts at retting outsige assistance,?

the Government made preparations to subdue the dietrict and
8 small force uncer sajor ning set out.5
o public meeting had been held at ureaff reinet
on the Lind Aupust, but adriaun van vaarsveld was the only
man of importence present from swartkop's idver, pruintjes
Hoogte and the Zuurveld.® 4 letter was entrusted to two
deputies, who arrived at the Cepe in time for (raig to
aiop Hajor kKing's advances The provisional landdrost,

Gerotz, was told to carry on until a new landdrost could be

sent to them and a general amnesty was declared for all

except ﬁoyar7.

le wels Gt Ve VOl L1l Pe 1.1,
Co bBU 49 Letier wruly to roure 24 June 179€. el T
3e ziCe Lolae VOle Le Po 426 wsetter Cralg to um. huskiason
3 augs. 1796,
4, The sutch fleet under .dairal iucas was captured at
saldahna bay.
#eCe CeCe vole 1 pe 433. Letter Craip to cundas 19,
sugy, 1796,
£. ivid. pe 453, setter Craig to raj. ning 4 ~€pLe 1796,
6, L0 26. Letter Grenite burghers to Gen. Cralg Zo Aug,1796,
7¢ Ue 49 Letter Cralg to Landdt. and reople of Urete
12, wept. 1796.
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Those on the frontier did not consider tais bind-
ing on them. 1n July they had held a metting at soschborg
on the summons of sarthinus irinsloo, znd talked of attack-
ing owellendem and restoring the "National Assenbly” theral,
but by the lith Movember a letter signed by thirty-one
burghers, expresacd thaeir viewa.d (raig replied that
they wouldé have to aubmita which they did, reslizing that
it was not use resisting any longer,

vresler was ayuin Lo be uent ag Janddrost, but
his departure was delayed until the new governor, the
rarl of wacartney, arrived?s  Eresler was then accom-
panied by .acartney's secretary, &, John BErrow, "to
digecover how fur the sume objects may appesr slike to
sritish and .utch ﬂyea"b.

sresler was given full instructions a¢s to the
methods he was to employ to restore peﬁce and order in
the cistrict,among the colonists and the katffirs. lie
was also given the right to turn anyone out of the district
who was likely to cauvse trouble, and to open a&ll couttful
corregpondence Letween the distriet und the capital.s
raving arranged motters at the drostdy Bresler,
burrow, Jan du ilessis and sendrik van hensburg went on
a tour of inspection to the rish r.ver., Thelr interpreter
was the Hottentot, .illem ﬁaaabek7. trom the Filsh river
presler writes of hia ottempts to persuade the nutives to
cross the river and of his intention of visiting Gaika.
1, BO 8¢ Circular of marth. crinsloo £l June, 1706,
HeCe Lebe VOle L pe 483 Lettur Cralg to snjor King.
4 .epte. 1796€.
e Li€Ce Ceba VOole L pe 478 burghers at rish n.ver to
Lralg 1, Novs 170€. '
3. ibid. pe St reply to the above. 3l.iec. 1796,
4. ibid, vol. II p. 38. ietter uraig to .undas 14 vane. 1797
&+ ibid. p. 113 sarl gfacartney to lundas 1l¢, July,1797.
6, BO 50U Instruction to «r. presler, general and secret
and open letter to Urekts 20 June 1797 A.C.T,
(uee also wce CeCe 11 88.)

7+ Grente £3Us dinute 10 Gete1l797. #eCeTs and zarrows
Travels vole. 1 pe 193,
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Further, according to the povers granted to him, cresler
ordered Coenrand de buys to leave the colony within two
montha owing to the compl«ints mude arcinst Lim by several
of the inhebitants, the charge being that because of the |
remote and unfuvourable situotion of his dwelling place
he was able to detain and comeeml hottentots,slaves «tc.l
de muy be sure thut nemﬁé%k VAT nwnéburg, whom de puys
had accuged of like practises the previous year, was one
of those who waiked for his banishnents van lhensburg and
du rlessis were to continue negotisting with the affirs
after Lresler's daparture.a
¥or the noxt six yenrsg coenrasd remnained an
outlaw frog the alstrict of uraaffl reinet. «hat dlid
trls sentence mean to him ¥ "The lancrost hed only the
shadow of &uthourity « « « thc orders of the Court of
Justice met with as 1little respect, at the Glstance of
five or six hundred miles, as the orders of the Landrost
sng his councile if a mon, after belrp summoned did not
chose to a;penr, there was no force in the country to com-
pel himy . « « the only punishment was a sentence of
outlawry for contempt of Court, A pentence that was
attended with 1ittle inconvenience to the eriminal, who
stiil continued to maintain hls ground in society, as if
no such sentence were hanging over him. It debarved
him, it is trﬁe, from mokinge his usual visits to the
capitul but he found no difffculiy in setting his business
done by proxy."a The truth of this was saply demonstra-

ted by de nuys' case during his outlewry.

le EeQs 27, Letter preasler o wacirtney 7 Sepel?797 4aeCeT
Ce Trerte 58U dinute 1L QJC'LQI'?Q!?U LHaleT a
3s porrow's Travels vole L1 p. 24
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by the end of the yeur kendrik ven kensburg made
his reporte me hud heard rumours that de suys had Jolned
the kuffira on this side of the rish kiver instigeting
then to rise against the Christisns anc to seize the land
alony the bushman river. .ftor this they wﬁfe to take
presler, barrow and those who had accompanivae them on
their tour as prisoners, to do with wg they pleased,

van tensburg sent Lottentot sples out, who
reported that the Captains meintained thet de vuys had
instigated them aguinst the Christians, but that, slthough
some of their subjects were willing, they were dise
incll.ed to such 8 step.

rurther, taptain Conga (Cungwe or Congo), on this
side of the rish river, had bven dusiried by a numb.r of
natives of the lessur chiefs,who wished to joln salke
across the river. Seedng hias power wenkened by this
desurtion Congs had taken Cuenraad prisoner so that,
according to his promise, he would help to defend him in
case of an sttack from Galke, whose power they were bee
giﬁning to fear. Coenrasd longed for his freedom ( die
rykhalsende na gijn verlossings uur blijft uitzien),?

This report is busged on the information got by
the nottentot sples from the kaffirs. This was told to
van nensburg and by bim to presler, who again reported it
Lo macartney. it can therefore not be taken as very
reliable., it 18 difficult to believe that de suys would
have instigated the kaffirs to rise ageinst his kinsmen
and friends, but not so difficult to believe that he wished
to be avenged on those whowere responsible for having him
outlawed, ke repeated these threats ageinst sresler latery

le BeUse 27, neport kresler to Lacartney containing
statement made by Heds van nénsburg 3 ecel797 AsleTe
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it 1s posalible too, that Longa held de buys prisoner, ale
though the reason give:. by vun kensburg may not be the
correct one,.

¥acartney ordered presler {0 su:mon de uuys’
"who always behaved as a bad subject’ to appear at the
drostdy within & given time, Lf he did not a,pesar the
landdrost was to iake every effort to take him, alive or
dead, & reward of one hundred rixdollars being offered for
him.l

Le Euys did not appear and the notice of the
reward offered for him was put up for all to R #bat
woulc de buys'! fate have been {f he had been sent to the
Cape?Y Fetrus uvelport, for refusing to tuke the oath of
allegliance, was deported-a

un guth i ril i?98, 8 Jeserter ( who claimed to be
a prince by birth, but later confessed that he was merely
an srishman, degerted Irom the ship cxeter) declarud that
he was going to join de ruys, who w&s reported to have been
elected king of the kaffirs. in the pgume letter, houever,
presler sald that de buys was rumoured to be in the long
nloaf, gw&llendam.q

macartney thereupon sent orders to swellendam
that retrus delport, Loenraad de Buys and &« faloe coiner
should be ajprehended and & reward offered for thelr capture,

and notified bresler of_this.s

l, b0 65 ‘rurther ingtructions for the Landte, of Grekt,

14 peb, 1798,
Ce YPrente 326, bpekendmaking - undated, appears between

2U Septe and 1lu Ucty 1788s #eleTe
3. U Bl. Letter cacartney to bresler lo July, 1798, neCeTs
4, BU 27 Letter presler o .acartney 21 »~pril 1798 AL T
6. U 81 Letters racartniey to raure and to wresler 22,

Layy 1798 4sCeTe .
S'dam 11 sinutes 4 June 1798 aeCeTs
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it is strange, in these circumstances,to find in the minutes

of the Landdrost and heemraden at uraaff neinet, mmong the

nanes of those who were permitted to leave with thelr

attestations for .wellendam, the nares of Coerraad de ruys

and Jucobus Delport,l but among the permits grunted by

+wellendam in rgply, there is not one for de ruys.®€ it

is possible that the latter had‘gona to his uncle Jacobus

in the Long Kloof. A note in the minutes states that

Jacobus de suys insulted P.H, van nooyen, for which he was

summoned to appear before the courte ne wrote in reply

that he could not appenr, o he was order<d to apologise

publiely to van Hooyen. 4 note adds that he is stated

to have kffirs on his farm, who must be ' ¢moved immediately

to prevent trouble.a
The fate of Delport probably made Coenrzad decide

to remove himself further from the seat of authority and

a Tew montha later, sresler wrote tiat the veldwaptmeester,

whom he had comimissioned to enquire after him reported that

he had retreated across the Lreat Fish river, where he

lived with a certain potha, his foster child, "intending

not to return 80 long as the Colony shall continue under

the present government." - This totha was probably

AChristoffel, but perhaps it was Jan, with the one¢ hand.
Bresler adds however, that as he is knoan to

the kaffirs as their enemy they will no doubt treat him

according to his deserts, and that, 4s fer as he is

conceérned, he will never rest until he has cleared the

country of this ::-cvgwa..{:1

1, ureht, ESV dinute 4 June 1798 ALCT.

&, w'dam 13U and 131 4 June, 1798 ««CeTs

3, 3'dam  1l, winute 14 vyune 1798 &5£4CeTo

4, BU 27 lLetter bresler Lo sscartney 1 oepte 1798 A.CT,

B U 43. ~nother deserter c.nfessed that he had stayed

with de buys for six months, until the latter
departed for the kaffir country (undated) Ae.leTe
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in Vetober, cresler, wes visited by "ambassadors®
from Galka and uresler hojed by thuelr means to get
¢e ruys, who had joined their chief. They seesed very
friendly, and he even hoped that Gaika himself would visit

the drostdy soon.l

1., BO 27 Letter uzresler to sacartney 9 Uct. 1798,
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Reference XBumber Act

Faarden
Runderen
Schapen
Snegphanen
Pistolen

Decgens

1767
{J 144
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46
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J 048

5¢

bou

J.144

100
bOU

J 84D

100
500

1794

J.ub

160

1796
J.144

1798
J .86

The uiove table vhows extracts frum mil tue Gruaaff-Reinet "opgasfrellen® in

existence from 1707 to 179¢.

&8 ne wap not in ine colouy.,

In 1796 snd 1790 Coenrasd's neme did not appear

Tue figurce for il the yesrs are most unreliuable

us they were must likely coupied (1700 from 1707 and the reanining figures from 1790)

by the lLsnddruets ur their Gcorctoxies.
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CHAPTLR LV,

Ihe van Juarsveld nhising and the paffir .ar, 1799,

Tuwards the end of 1798 plans were aguin made
to overthrow the anglish rule. fhere were people in

Capetown who kept the distrlets informed of events there,

and in uurope.l A8 a result of hapoleon's desions on

“gypty and india, sacurtney wes ordered to send a large

part of his forece to the‘“ast.z vecartney himself left for
tnilandi, and lmmediately after the stores and horses of the
Jragoons were destroyed by fire at the Cap&.a all thege
rumours,distorted in form and magnitudeqreached Graaff relnet
in due course.4 The wnglish government had never used

force in the districts,and now they were no longer cone

sidered capable of it.b

it was therefore decided "to renew the old
vatriotism"® This sturted as carly as -eptecber 1798,
according to one witneau,7 but the firgt proof of it a;jpears

in a letter dated 12th wecember, 1?9&.8

liote, in this chapter 1 have made extensive use of the
sumning up of the f.cel and the ventence of the
Sraaff Keinet Prisoners in iec, Cole Voll.lil po
€13 « 296, the nugbers given by me refer to the
clauses as murked there,
(nly the wentence itself ie to be found in the
arciives at capetown. (Ceds 744)

1.(449)=(460).
Z2¢ 1€Ce Cele VOle LI pe 261 Lietter war Uffice to
xecurtney 18 June,1798,
3 ibid p. 3U2 Letter naj. Seén. landas to kt, Hon. He
dundas 2 Lec 1798,
4, (449)-(460) and @97)=-(498 )
nete Cols VOle 11 pe 4 U Letter Jen. van de ceur Lo
'ien. Lundas Ll Narch, 1798,
ivid p. 4.7 Letter perrow to Jen, oundes 3 ~pril 1792,
ibid p. 439 iroclamation by Laj.%en. Lundas U June 1799
Be (45E) and (5(6)
6. (475)
7« (426)
8s (474)=(476}
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The attempt was doomed to fallure from the start.
it was evidently not the desire of the mejority of the
inhabitants to rebel. The scheme origlnuted among a
mere half dozen men, at the mest, and through their ree-
presentations they managed to gather a small band, probably
not more than thirty, who were ready for mischief. Thege
ardent patriots then munaged by force, persuansion and threats
to get others to join them.

Thelir organisation left much to Le desireds Thelr
object was " Lo renew the former Greaff aginet patriotiam:,
This was given various interpretations by the rebels.l d
in the early stuyres there does not seem to have been any
plan of campaign, nor any recognised leader.® s far as
can be discovered the sequence of events was ss follows s=-

in becesber 1798, sarthinus :rinsloo visited
Jan potha, nicknamed "one hand” who lived on the farm of
t'e hautenbich. Frinsloo intimated that 1f sufficient
willing followers could be found to press him to renew the
former puatriotism, he would tuke command.a shut his
particular grievance was, 1s a mysterye tne of his fellow
conspirators later said, "that he considers irinslo aa
the principal author of the disturbances in JSraaff hHelnet o
e« o and i am extrenely surprized at it, fur he is a men that
livea like a fish in the water, and yet he is always the
first in the aisturbancesv,?

Upon this su gestion vJan boths wrote a letter,

disted léth Lecenber, 1798, "that they had resolved to renew

1., (168)=(1l62)

e #8Ce Cole Vola ii po 4864, Lettor Jeply .ecrs hoss 0O
nte Hon. M. Lundas 11 septe. 1799,

3. (473)

4, (972)«(973) (i.e. like a Tighting cociy on the fat of the
land.)
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the former ratriotism which had been neglected and,
to carrﬁ it on with grester energy tha before.” This
letter srinsloo read to severasl uthursl and 80 the fire
apread, Coenrsad de huys, known as tre enemy of the
~nglish, &nd one who would gladly avenge his wronga,
was communicated with in kaffirlend by letter,©

Aanother dlly was found {n ~driaen van Jaarsveld,
on a gummons for forgery of a receipt to the rphan
Chamber, he had Lo a;;ear In Capetown on the £9th
Kovember, 17984 This he feiled to dca, knowing his gullt,
he was therefore arrested by the ianddrost at Graafl
neinet on 17th January 1799, to be conveyed to the Cape.
ie gubmitted quetly but remarked that he feared this would
cause a disturbance among the paople.4 ind it did.

van Jaarsveld's arreat probably brought the
rising to a head premutur<ly, but wheth-r they had
expectea it or not, iringloo made good use of the oppor-
tunity to spur on the laggards with this proof of the govern{ 
ments perfidy. Four days later irinsloo, with an ammed
band of farmers, desanded van Jaarsveld from the small
escort which was taking him to the Capital., The eacort
informed the farmers that he was not wanted by the Govern-
ment, but for another matter, to which irinsloo replied,
"that this was not the only affair tut that there was
another which was spreading all over to wwellendam,
therefore he must have van Jearsveld"®

The band next went to a farm near .raaff nelnet,
from where letters were sent out bilding the farmers to
assemble, armed, at riet aautenbach?s on the 26th January,
l. (475)=(478)
2. (480) and (163)=(188).
3e (36)=(38)
4. (43)=(47)

6e¢ (72)=(97) angd nece vele Vole 11 pe 355 Leposition of
ke vertel 1€, rebs. 1799,
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and asking Barend vurgers to Join them; adding that
Nalte, ber:gel and Ceylon had been taken Ly the hational
Convention.lﬁin France )
rrom here over & hundred armsed aen went to
the Lecond urift, near the drostdy, and from there
gent four delegfites'to ask for whet reason van Jaarsveld
had been apprehended and sent away and to make some
reasonable requeats“2, chief of which was thelr old
requeat, "that the inhabitants dwelling nearest the Groot
vis rHiver might be allowed to drive théir cattle into
caffraria"s. This wag a frivolous pretuct for taking
up arms, but gresler wus forced to ask this of the
Government, out of fear for their numbars.é
The party then broke up and reagsembled on
sarthinus frinsloo's Tare on 28th Januury. Fere they
were jolned by Coenrsad de bBuys, whom irinsleo had sent fory

6 vafinite proposals

when van Jesarsveld was arrested.
as to how the patriotism was to be renewed seemed to

have been made here, and their form ls clearly due to

de nuys' influence. in 1797 it was rumoured that de

bBuys wanted the keffirs to geize land along the tushman
river and to hand kresler and barrow over to the kaffira.e
iilere, 8t irinsloo's, they decided again to téke the
Colony, as they put it, and to carry off the landdrost

and his family from the drastdy-7

le (107)=(1ll4).

2. (128).

3s (137) and rece «oCe V0leli pe 349 Letter panddrost
and heemraden to K&j. Gen. pundas 28 Jan, 1799,

4, ibid p. 361l. ietter bresler to vaj. Gen. undas
24 Jan » 1799!

b (144)‘(155)0

6, LU Z7 neport bresler to wacartney 3 Lec, 1797. a«.CeTe

7e (161)=-(162 ),
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ror this purpoee circular letters were sent
out by de ubuys and irinsloc, calling the burghers to
cone armed Lo the drostdy on lzth February.l The
leaders essevbled st Jan nosch's place two days earlier
to estimate thelr ctrengthe st a meeting held there,
it was decided "to deliver the Landdrost into the hands
of Lcenread de ruys"<, iTineloo was ssked at the
trial "Whether they had not a;reed at Losch's to proceed
with the Cuffers to take the Czpe if possible* and
replied "their plan bad been to join the Caffers to
the purghers and retake LUraaff neinet, and all those
that woulc not participate in thelr proceedingas would
be put to death snd thelr calile would have beeh surved
out to the Caffers for provision", but he added,"thut
this was buys and Jan botha's plan, but which no other
person would agree t0"3

Ly this time the moderste men had hed time
1o reflect and some, like nendrik van nensburg and Thomas
ireyer, tried to moderate their zeal, while others re-
ported thelr proceedings to the landdroat.4 The
more sensible farmers must have reallzed that they were
being used &«s & catspew to obtuln revenge for a
turbulent outlaw like de wuys, and to further the schemee
of those on the kaffir frontier, who wished to have &
free hand against their natural enemies, the kaffirs,
The uneeuwberg furmers hud their own problem, the wild
busbmen, and they were not anxious to join those with
grievunces aguinst the kaffirs.
1., (168)-(169).
¢ (170)~(172),
3 (€70)=(672)»
4e (173 )=(17€),

E. (13v) and BU 24 Letter raure t0 Kaj. Sen. .undas 6§,
sarch, 17929 and nece Cols VOole 1l pe 2BC,
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The leaders were therefore forced to postpone
further action until 17th rebruary, when they hoped to have
the Jwagorshoek farmers to join them. & Jetter was sent
signed "the volce of the reople', cotmanding them to come
or be considered "Traitors to their Ccuntry".l

in another desperate attempt to get support de
puys even produced a letter from the landdrost to tendrik
van sengburg which, he sald, proved that the landdrost
supplied the kaf{firs with powder and lead. his letter wusg,
of course, deliberately misintarpret&d.‘ beanwhile, the
drostdy and the roads 10 the Cape were guurced by armed men,
to prevent presler from getiing h&lp.a

The neeting, fixed for the 17th brebruary, took
place at parend rurger's farm near the drostdy.  Here de
ruys tried 1o get the "multitude” to sign a paper, which
some suld was an osth of alleglance to de buys and others
a plan of what they were to do, but it wus torn to pieces in
the dispute which f0110wed.Q Herey too, they were visited
by the reverend sr,., ballot, their minister, who tried to
reason with them, with very small success.®

& have ktllots asccount of this visit from a
letter which he wrote to the piscal, which was intercepted
by the govvrnment.e tallot writes that Coenraad de
puys was said to be at the head of the armed men, but that
it wgs really ven Jeérsveld, whose true purpose it was to

convey the landdrost to the kaffir country. sallot did

1. (178)«(179).
2o (183)«(181),
3¢ (196)~(19€) and (228),
4, (200)=(2(8),
He (EUD)=(218).
G 8O 2€. hede ToHe pallot to riscal 24 rebe 1799, (also
in Hecs Cele VQl. il Pe 37UJ.
BO 66 idary march 17,1799. kote of tallot's letter being
intercepted.
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not guess the originator of this scheme and de buys seums

to have made a4 good impression on him. bHe writes, "1

Lhere only add my request, thet {f there is any possibility

to grant puys his pardon. This is a men who really dosa

not design any i1l, and who in my opinion may still become

& proper wurgher, &£lso all that the iLanddrost and Heemraden

kave written of him has becn done\apontaneoualy, for he has

conducted himself in every respect compcsedly. 1 beg you

to speek with the Ueneral on this subjeet®, 1

But on pallotes departure the rebels were reviewed
by de puys snd van Jstarsveld, "and thereupon conducted theme
gelves 80 a8 perfectly to evince that the; had in no zanner
desisted from thelr plan, and that 1t was not so wmuch the
exhortation of the heverend dr, callot as agaih the want of

a gufficient number of %en that made them resolve to poate

pone until another time the final execution of their

intention”.* The men ther heard, or suspected, that

troops were c.ming to the landdrost's assistance, so they

forced him to gsend a letter to the government saying that,

as order had been restored, there was no need t0 seng troops

and asking that van Jaarsveld might be excused the "prise

de corpsg" against him. . note was added saylng how the

koffirs were to be treated and concluding , "it 18 also our
desire tﬁat any ¥essage which may be dispatched to the Caffres
shall not be performed bw by our fellow burgher Coenrsad

de buys."

l. Duncas wrote (hecs CeCe VOls 11 pe 381) that bmllot'a
letter was written under "evident constraint® but
Ballot's renaria about van Jsarsveld disprove this,
as well as the fact that zeilot continued to make efforts
td get a pardon for de buys and even esrote to him in
haffirland, unfortunately only a translation of this
letter to the fiscal 1s avellabde, vhat the Landt. and
H'raden wrote “Jpontaneously” appears to refer to thelr

lotter written under pressure on 19th rebruary, 179Q.
2- {219)‘(222)0
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The lettor says"The burgher Coenraad de buys has
also appeared in the village end requested that it may
please Your rxcellency to repeal the order given by the .arl
of .acartney to the janddrost by an instriction bearing
date 14th rebrusry, 1798, by which he hus been declared an
(utlew, we therefore beg leave to join our requast to his
that 1t may please Your sxcellency to reinstste him in his
former purgher rreedom, he promising to Conduct himself as
becomes & good kurgher and to answer this fevour, and we
being able tc asssure Your kxcellency that the behaviour
of the said de Buys has in every respect appeared to us
to be moere than worthy of this exoneration“.l

das this written "spontaneously" as Ballot said ¥
eresler says this letter was written to save his lifezbut
he may not have been referring to this particular part of
ite His diary says more definitely "“imong other things
Coenraed de puye did send to require of me a certificate
of his being sllowed unmolested to continue in this district,
wh:ich permission i1 found myself obliged from want of force
to counteract such violence, to grant, but under approbation
from the Governor. in the evening information was recelved
that an armed complot was already assembled « « » & tO drag
me from the Lrostdy, which however wag obviated by Coenr:iad

de Buys pretending night time to be very improper for the

1. Letter candt, and H'raden Gr. Kte to wundes 19 reb. 1799
also nece CoCe Vols 1l pe 364,
2e¢ BO 26 Letter ogte Maje 5ie irwin to aActing Adj. Dickson
24 Tebs 1798¢ AdCeTs
BU 24 Letter pandt. kaure to linj.Gen. undas & serch
17984 AeCeTo
soth letters are aleo In fecs Cole vols 4l pe 36E and
Pe 379,
necs Cols Vole il pe 38l. Letter dundas to Vandeleur
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purpwue.”l

That de suys should have let such a chance go
by after all his threuats ageinst vresler is most remarkable.
#@ can only eurmige that he really intended to give up his
carear of violence and earn his pardon, This 13 the
kindest thing presler ever reported of him, although 1t gwems
hardly intentional,
This happened on the night of rebruary 18th,
und the next day the consyirators met agsin on the farm
of Jan Mosch, mmoni; them de suys and "one handg® ﬁoth&,g
who adeministered a solemn oath which sowe prisoners salgd
was en onth nmot to betray Lotha and de puys, and others
that potha swore 1o repulse the british troops.
Coenraad then returned to Caffreric and Jan
Bothe went to form a camp at Coegay Lo Oppose the troops,
whom they expected would land at .wartkops Bﬁy.s
ahy did Coenread withdraw at this stage
Did he intend to make a renl) effort to raise the kelffirsg
to Join them, or ¢id he wish to dlascelate himself from
further troubles and try to gain o pardon ¥ U course,
he knew the dangey of being captured in the district as
an vutlaw, |
Troops were aovencing by lsndand sea and $0 van
Jaareveld and warthinue rrinsloo, in a last cesperate effort
to stop them, sent a threatening letter to the Landdrost
and necvaraden at Yraaflf reinet and added a posteript that
1 Hottentot scldlers were used against them, buys would
wareh &geinat thom with the kaffirs - "r,5. Als de minste
gerugte van pandoere hllkt, rukt buys mel de pantsche
le becs Colle Vols Ll pe 394 ovournsl kept by Lendt. kresler,

Je (LEA)=(EB1)0
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Cafferland doear op loand inother iule threat, as de Luys
never appueared. At the same time efforts were made to
get 88 rany artwed men at Coega as possible2 and Jan botha
left, as sore sald, to get the raffirs on this side of the
Fish river to join as well, 3

Un the 3rd sarch sajor mchNab wrote that Coenraad
had been joined by f'ourteen critish descrters and thet hu was

hara et work collecting a kaffir force.?

vandeleur, with
his usual hastiness, wrote that buys was at the head of the
rebels, when he wag actually in haffirland. "He boasts his
intention of attacking us in a narrov ravine about 40U miles
from hence, on the woy to 4Graaff reinet - - - = -, 1 flatter
m;self we shall give him remson to repent his rashuess,
should he be herdy enough to risk an attack, Yet 1 could
almost wish he would vo it, as L think a joou drubbing at
first mijht be the means of saving a greut geal of bloodshed
eventuall&."ﬁ He heard of this intention, probably,

from some farmurs who hsd come to lay down thelr arms as soon
as Le arrivec® and they were probably repeating the thrests
of van usargveld and irinsloo, who were tylng to rally the
waverers with these tulas.

brom swartkops vandeleur marched vo Uraaff Feinet,

1. (301)“'(3%10 and Srefte EBV. Minute B Warch, 1700 sl el

Se (3\)7)"(308)-

3. (337).

4+ hece Colle Vols 11 pe 384 Lettur .aj. Sc.ab to &8j.
5en, sundas 12, wmarch, 1799,

6. 1bid p. 387 (and 20 26 A.CeT) brig. Sen. vandeleur to
taj. Gen. iundus from Jwartkops (undsted - probably
firat week in warch.)

6 (350)-(3851)
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where presler wus relivved and the rebels sent delegutes

1

to ask for pardon. The rest surrendered soon after

in the Juurveld and cruintjes ﬂoogtegg where nautenbach
with a hundred men wus said to be expecting de buys &nd the
Kaffirs.® A small number fled to kKaffirland where |
vandeleur intended to pursue themed
The rebellion was over nnd nota shot had been
fired nor a drop of blood shed on either sida,5 which
18 ruther amusing after a.1 the threats and big talk on
both sides. lwenty of the ringleaders who hud been
caught were sent to Capetown by ses to await their triale,
tut twe were later releussed. Their triel, however, did
not take place until Aupust of the following year owing
to the war which now broke out, known as the Third (affir
war,
osuring these disturbances the kaffirs had been
coming over the kish river in large numbera7 but the
nglish were confident that they would not join the rebels,
nor become hoatilea, althoupgh bresler waurned them that he
expected trouble with them.?
vandeleur chanred his mind avout goinyg into
naffirlund and sent Commandant hendrik van bensburg
instead with instructions to obtein the p-rsons of the
refugec rebels by any wmeans - “te doden, dan wel op eenige
andere wijze te vernielen”, ror these eight, Coenraad
de puys, Jan Botha, Christoffel totha, Coenraad seguldenhout,
1, (382)=(363).
Lo (367)=(368), (376)~-(380,
3. BU 26 Letter vandele r to Haj. Uen. iundas 21 sareh,
1799, AeCeT.
4, BU £6 Lettur vanuele.r to saj. Gen., .undas, 1o aApril,
1799, AeCeTe
Eo seCe Cale Veledl p 4eb Lelter taj. Gen., undas to nt.
Fon. he uundas, 11 ey, 1790,

6. (384)-(388)
7. necs CoCe VOl. LI 387. Vandeleur to 2aj. Jen., iaundas (un-

dated) o . .
B, L0 zglggtkég.ms{ia? ﬁgl‘sf? .pp&ﬁ&ﬁﬁ 18 sarch 1799 HeCeTe

gu 1b1dc ‘ u L RS ] i 4 3« . .4
218,597 Mangdeleur to isaj. Gen Dundes zl . arch 1799
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Jan knoetze, Gert Costhuizen, riet ~teenberg, and
¥rans krieger a rewsrd of lulC idse wes offered, alive
or deads  come of them were sugpected of being on this
8ide of the rish river, but if they were founcd to be with
Galka, he was to be persusded by promises or presents
to give them up.l

sefore van rensburg could carry out these
instructions, however, the kaffir war broke out, and, asa
the hLottentds joined the Acsus, Senerel .undas himself
hurried to the frontier to take charge, he wus obliged
to remuin there Tor over five months L0 restore some sort
of order Ly which time several families had been nurdered
and most ¢o° the farms in the frontier districts were laid
wastea, the invaders penetrating as far as the Long gluof.s

e buys wes naturally suspected of being implie
cated in this war, From the urostdy oresler wrote, that
the Hottentots and Keffirs threstensd him with an attack
to which they were encouraged by the inhatitants, who
fled befure them, offuring no resistunce, "so that I think
the want of ammunition is not the only reason, but that
there are other reasons why they fly".4 They had not
beven glven their usual supply of ammunition owins* to the
retellion € rlier in the yesr, and this, together with the
defection of their Hottentots, rvally s-ems a sufficlent
reason for thedir flight, althuugh presler's words imply more,

according Lo & deserter's atatesent, de suys
was on his wey to the rortugues settlement in July, when

the wur was at 118 helght. He failed and remained with

l. b0 26 instructions to Comdt. van rensburg 24 kay,1799

AeCaToe
s 168s Cele Vole 11 po 23W/231s 7Trial of the 18
prisoners.

3s 20O B3. Letter uBpty -eCr'e 2088 10 landt. raure 3,
Aug, 1799, AlCeT,

4, BO 26. Letter sresler to Gen, Lundas 20 auge. 1799,
#eCoTe
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the Tawmbookies, far from the scene of wer, "van der
kemp who was no friend to the Colonists and a zealous
adherent to the .nglish, exculpates buys from such
accusationa” says .Lichterwt.ein.2 Laynier, who now
becare resident Commissioner at Greaff heinet, wrote many
years later of the state of the frontier in 1799, "The other
trites of the caffres, comprising those who resided some
little distence from the frontier, like Gaika anc others,
took no active part, but received in a friendly manner
Buys, rrinsloo ete - - - -nd
#hen we remember that Coenraasd's osn btrother wos

rendered homeless by the kaffirs burning his housaé, we
cannot believe that he egged the kaffirs on to despoil
kis own neiibours, kinamen and frinds. That his friends
trusted hinm is spparent from the deserter's stutement that
de cuys "frequently received letiers from the boors,
mentions their names s well as some that have sent him
gunpowdﬁr“5

There can, however, be little doubt that de buys
did a1l in his power to make Gaika hostile and suspicious
of the mnglish government and all its agents.

if we may belleve van der Kemp, de bHuys illustra-

ted the character of the :nglish to Uuika by saying thatthey

were "the bogjeswans of the uea", which made them despise

l. B0 2€, Letter Th. Ly‘ndon t0 ffx&ja &‘zc’ﬁﬂb, 7 (Cle 1799 ALWT.
Lis sbsence In July is further confirmed by the fact

that Gulka had no interpreter to read van der Lemp's
lettur to him, vee entry, 3v July, 1799, vah der
Remp's Journal, Transactions of the i'issionary
society (1Bud).

2. Lichtensteine « Truvels - vol, 1. p 368,

3+ Leport of Commissloners of .astern inguiry, Blue Book
1836 p. 29.

4, BO 26, Journal kept for the veltcornet p.He van nooyen
o0 vet, 1799’ AellaTe

6. ibid (note 1) Lyndon addec thut he would not mention
the names of the "boors” in case the letter fell into
their huinds and they took alarm.
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the rnglish as tralitors andg robbera.l dunduas was thus
not far from the truth when he wrote, "1 have alwsys bLoen
persuaded that the people from Uraff keynet who have taken
refuge in Caffraria, huve scattered the sveds of future
mischief, by falsely representing us to the savayes, and
although the frults are not yet developed, it is most certain
that the source of any serious interruption of the present
tranquillity will be found on the other side of the Great

rish piver, so long as that gang of ruffians remain there",“

1. Liichternoteins Travels, Vole. 1 p 403,
e Hlue book, 1836, puge 3&.

Notes ror the followin cha;ter, slmost the only source
for the events In raffirlend is the vournal of Lr. van
der hemp, publisied in the YTrensactions of the
¥issionary scclety, London, 184, The dutes
given will refur to the e¢ntries in this journzal,

Unfortunately the good boctor says a great deal more
sbout the souls of his converts thuan he coes of the
various intrigues between himself, the fugitives and
uaikas The impression one guins from the journal
is that, considering their reputation, the fusitives
were very kind to him. It may be that he was merely
being forgiving and charitable. There is no reason
for him to be silent about thelr misdeeds when
reporting to his soclety except that the fugitives
themselves acted as his messengers in taking his
reports to the Culony to be sent overscas, and some
of the deserters could read wunglish.

ancther source is the staterent made to Lt. Thomas
iyndon by a deserter who was with de puys three months
before, 1.¢. in vuly. The statement eppears in a -
letter, Lyndon to wajor kelNab, 7 Cete 1799, O 26.

AeleTe
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CHAPTLR V.

beyond the rish Kiver, 1790=1803,

#e¢ must now follow de buys into naffirland,
which he had enterec during rebruary 170904  Of his efforte
to gut the kaffirs to help the rebels we have only the
staterent of the deserter, that de iuys wanted Guika to
come out of Caffrdand himself to fight againet the English,
but that Ualka would not agree to that.a it 18 not
likely thet de tuys would have tried the tribes on this
8ide of the rish niver as Longa had kept him priscner
in yecenber 1797, after which de puys and one of the sothas
was reported to be living with Galka, who was supposed to
be the enemy of the kaffirs on the colonial slde of the
river.a it is therefore more likely that he returned to
Guika,
pefore the troogs had reached Grasff :elnet

de puys wus Jjolned by a4 number of #ritish desurters and
other fugitivea.4 They doubtless kept themselves informed
of the progress of the insurrection, and, on the departure
of the prigoners to Capetown for trisl, de puys must have
reailized that he could never return to the colony in safe-
ty» sfter living among the kaffirs for some yeirs he
had no doubt enjoyed being ameong his own people upraine.
in adaition, pallot mey reazlly have made some impression
on de puys, &8s his religious prejudices were apparently too -
deeply rooted to be abandoned, in spite of their conflict
with his actionse. His request for a pardon wis therefore
probvubly eincere, but the fate of the other rebels showed
1. Triul of irisonors. 1ece CeCo IlI po 24
Ze There are t00 the threats made by :rinsloo and van

Jearsveld that de suys would bring the kaffirs over

to fight., Gr.ate $9C. Linute 9 march,1799.
e BU 27 Letter cresler to cacurtuey 1 cep 1798 AlCWT.

4o Hecs UeCoe Vol 1d P 3F4  Letter L.ﬁj. we.ab 1o MBJ.
Gen. SULGES 4 1. ifimn. 1799, AeCaeTe
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him that he could not hope to be accepted as an ordinary
burgher againe. HNow comes the scheme of golng to the
bortuguese settlement on the tast Coast.

L@ buys must have heard a grest vesl of part of
the route anc the couniry to the esst, as rendrik Janse
van rensburg and Tjaart van der ¥alt had both accompanied
van seenen on hig Journey in search of survivorg of the
uosvenor in 1791,1 be buys' preparations would take sore
time, us letters would have to be wsritten and supplies,
especiully of gun powder, would have to be obtuined from the
colony b.fore sturting on such & journey., Thet this waas
successfully obtuined is evident from the ueaertéﬂbatatementfa

' The party, he suid, consisted of nine deserturs

and eight colonists, two of whom had their wives and children
with them.a thelir firgt two attempts to leave were foiled
by alka, who brought them back, fearing thet they would
bring other kaffirs against hime The thirc time they got
further, but were turned tack by the lambookles, who took
their waggoneoxen snd killed one of the Cchristians, after
this they appear to have remained in the Tumbookies country
as Galkxz had no interpreter to read Ore. vin der hemp's
letter which he sent in July 179¢, asking for permission to
enter saffirland.?

Negotiations with Galke were still belng carried
on by the _anddroat and neemraden, through 1regard, who

1. ireck of the Urosgvernor § Carter and van heenen page
186,

2e¢ wee above poge 43.

3. The names are very much mutilatea bty Lyndon but they
are quite recognisable as vohannes votha "one hand”,
Christoffel rcotha, rrans EKruger, Johannes inoctze
Coenraad pezuldenhout, .teenberg and one other cniled
Jhn s Lucas as nesr a8 1 can read Ite. he wus killed
by the i1ambookies. Jteenberpy is never mentioned in
vaen der kemp's journal later,

4., Van der hemp's Journale 3U July, 17980,
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again used Flet trinsloo to carry his measagesal
+ringloo, carrying an extract of the resolutions agree=-
ing 1o terms of peace with tyalka, subject to the approval
of teneral vandéluurﬁ, overtook the misslonaries on their
way to raffirland an¢ showed himgelf hostile to thwm.a

van der Xemp entered haffirland again on useptember
18th and learned that de buys had buen sent for by Galka
and that he hed arrived from the Tambockie country on the
1€th. “hat his advice to Uanika was we can only specu-
late, for luomdiately after de vuys' return rlet krinsloo
wrote to the Landdrost that he was going to Galka's kraal,
where he would be compelled to stay until peace was cone-
cluded, a8 he did not wish to be guilty of the blood of
women snd chiléren whoin the kaffirs sculd murder if he
refused to stay, &s the peace offered had not been carried
out.4 His meaning 18 not wvery cleur, perhaps intentionally
80, The deserter gtated that all that riet bfrinsloo
did was to ride round to the "boors" to get them to fight
against the waglish.

un the Zuth oeptember van der hemp had his firat
interview with Geike and de puys actec &g 1n§erpreter.
He seid to de Buys, "1 suppose you are r. puys and undere
stand these thingsy;  the Lord has sent me to preach the
tiogpel to this people, after i shell huve atteined their
language., This 1 know sald #r. buys; the Gospel must
be ;reached to all nations, but you are come at a very
improper time;" Gaika snld he was not safe himgelfl and

therefore advised them to go, but van der hemp said he

1, 4r.ite 690  Minute 23 August, 1792 AWLC.T.
e 1ibid 7 uetober, 1799

3. <28 August. Journule

4. bu 26 Letter e irinsloo to nresler 18 .ep.l799 AT


p1248979
Rectangle
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wanted no more protection than was afforded to de Buys,
van der Kemp then gave de suys a letter from the
severend sallot.d Je bBuys however, was still doubtful
and said he would not meddle with thelir affairs nor give
them any assistance.<
The Doctor now heard that rrinaloo had represented
the two misslonaries to Gailka as sples and assassinators who
were going to poison him and de zuys confirmed that this |
had been aaid.a rerhaps he had been thinking over
sallot's letter meanwhile and was beginning to relent
towards the missionarles, or perhaps he resented irinsloo's
interference in the matter, sallot had written that he
wag surprised at receiving no reply to his letter of 30th
April, in which he had informed de bBuys that he had obtained
a pardon for him, He deplored the fact that it appeared
from whuat de buys had written (evidently to someone else)
that he diastrusted the government, with the result that
the General had withdrawn his pardon. he hud succeeded
however, in getting him a second pardon, but only on
condition that he delivered up the other fugitives with
him, vandeleur must have known that he could not do this,
but pellot assured him that if they would only write sube
missively and confess thelr faults, begging forgliveness,
the General would pardon them. Ballot further commended
the bearers of the letter, van der hemp and :“dmonds, to
him and tegs that he will give them every asasistance in hila
power, “"dewyl nu, uit u geaprek op graffereynet (ik) hed
kunnen bemurken det gy achting voor den Godsdienst hebt."”
le BO 26 Letter uallot to C. de Buys. 10 Jduly, 1799,A.C.7

e 8U wepe Journal,
3o i—l,gg wepe. 1bid.
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«hether de buys hankered for the respectability
of having a parson and & schoolinaster for his establishment
or whether he hopud to muke some use of the missionaries
eithe:r with the government or with Gaika is afifficult to
decided, but van der iemp writes on oeptember 24th, "In the
morning Luys attended at our family worship, uﬁd told us
he was convinced that God had sent us;  he would be our
friend, come down himself, with his children and family
out of the country of the Tambouchis to build an house
for me¢ on the other alde of the great river 'Keigkarmna,"

Le Luys was as geod 88 his worde  although
van der semp neither praises nor blames, but just states the
daily events as they occurred, one cannot btut be struck
at all that de duys did for the old man, who must often have
trivd his patience sorely, especlally, with regard to his
attitude to his coloured converts, shich was so utterly
different from the conception de buys had of the proper way
to treat them. Although vean der remp, when he considered
his projects to be in denger through de huys' presence,
intended taking up his abode with a kraal of tottentots,
de buys nev.r abandoned his charge until he retuined him to
the colony almost two years later,

se puys had now decided tuv keep the missionaries,
but Jalka took a much longer time to meke up his mind.

e was evidently very suspicious and it needed all de buys'
eloguence to persuade him, I'rom day to day Gﬁ?kﬂ put

them off, until at last de buys determined to force the fssue
e sent Galka a message to suy that he was returning to the
Tambookies ana the missionaries would accompany him or
return to their own country. tie made all ready for his
Journey and refused the escort Gulka had provided to fetch
his family. This brought “alka and his captains on the

scene at once, The King demandea to know the reason for
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;he preparations, uJe buys upbraided him for his contempt
of him, explained why the missionaries had come and sald
it was & shaue to keep them awaiting an explicit reply for
over a fortnight. This firm attitude was successful
as Yaika replied in a speech "which lasted about an hour"
and van der xemp was given a field over the iXeifskamma
where he was to remain unhindared.l

in spite of this some of the missionaries' oxen
were stolen and de ruys was asked to help recover them,
¥hen de cuys arrived he said that hia messengers hLad
returned from the lambookies and re,orted that his house
and wsgion were burmnt, his wife and nine children had been
murdered, probatly b, the makdinnas. lLothing 1s saild of
de buys' feelings except, "He slept this night with ua“.2

The following day de buys went to complain of
these excesses to Galks, and on the 1lEth tLctober he brought
back their oxene. C(hristoffel potha too, returned from the
Tambookles and reported that the rakdinnas head indeed been
guilty of burning'the house and waggon, but that prs. bBuys
and his children had been saved by T'Jatacu, the Tambookie
captain, father-in-law to Gaike. "buys then desired me
to pray and to thank the Lord for this deliverance"a

They next went to their fiels over the T'Keliskamma’
where the uoctor! introduced fumily worship into the
house of iir. buys®. The "field” was divided btetween them
and a site selected for van der kemp's house,

seanwhile, Jaika's messenger came 10 request de
ruys to assist him at & council &s he had arrested riet
rrinsloo and two of his friends on suspicion of their being
l. vournal ‘ct &, 1799.
. ibid tet 16,1799

3e ibid vet 18,1798
4, ivia Let <1 and Z&.
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8p.les, - 184 de Luys sowed this suspicion in Leika's
mind % Uid he alstrust irineloe’s influence with Gaika
or was he jeslous of this intermediary from the governmenty
van der RKemp's only comment is, "1 sowed lettuce and
carrots and planted red currants and potutoes”. That
evening he must bave heard the matter discussed, but
againhis only comment next doy is, "ar. cuys went to
uaike end i coutinued to plant black currants, gouseberries
and raapbarriea“‘l

Apparently rrinsloo wus released, for aoon after
we Lecr that a neighbouring tridbe had teken hisg cattle and
that he was flylng for the sokkevelde©

-esnwhile de puys hid depsrted to fetch his
tamily. The yuestion of de buys relation: with native
AX?f?H;evar be entirely cleared up, ﬁa‘hw was married by
native customs, 1f at all, and no record of these axisted.
it was not necessary for Lureopean guests to go through
a ceremony either, as for exauple in the case of van der
remp and Idmonds, they were offered two maidens = which
thay declinaﬁ.a saynier had accused him of teking
ianga's wifed,a much more serious offence, which made
Langa's whole tribe hostile to him, The desurter had
reported “that D'Guika's mother sleeps with Conrad suis”,
and "that buis keeps with a Caffres .uld, sister 1o
conguna’ . Further "that suie has told L'Tuika that he wil
give rim a vaughter that is fifteen years old“s This
last statement is confirmed by Colling, who told of
Galkae in 1808, it was amuasing to observe the e&rnestness
with which he dwelt on a promise that he stuted had been
zade to him by Coenraad <e buys, when an exile iIn his
ls dournal (cte 23 and L4, 17¢9.
£, 1bid page 447 .

o
3. ibigd Ccte 3 4 1790
4. C.1C6 nesolution 9 kay, 1794.



UNIVERSITY OF PRETORIA
YUNIBESITHI YA PRETORIA

P
w UNIVERSITEIT VAN PRETORIA
e

country, of bestowing his daughter on him in morriage when
arrived at maturity", Collins seld that she was already
merried to en inhabitant of the colony, which was unwelcome
news to “‘alke who insinuated that she ought to be compelled
to fulfill her first engagement.l |

The Fiscals report descriies de buys =s,"one who
hed absconded frow the colony in the .utch time, residing
ever since like & vagabond among the caffers on the other
8ide of the Groot yig hiver, where he kept a caffer womun
Tor his wifea, agreeable to the custom of‘that nation, by
whom he hod several children for which resson the present
goévernment would not adnit him to this Settlement, but
considered him as an vutlaw anﬁ.Vagrant"a #e presume
that the riscal knew of other reasons for his banishment.

Lichtenstein says of Galka's mother and de buys,
"that a sort of marrisge was concluded butween them after
the nanner of the Caffers, and in a short time he shared
with this woman the &lmost unbounded influence which from
her ronk as well as her prudence she had obtained over the

4

whole nation', He does not tell us who his informant

waa, although he does say de Buys "carefully avolded speaking

5]

of himself and his cornection with the Caffres,” He

may heve heard if from vuan cer hemp who told him thut Caika

took no measure of importance without consulting his mother

and hiz fugitive friend.e

If de puys was really married to Jnika's mother it
must heve been a very loose form of union as he seidom lived
at Jaika's place, but had his own establishment, even when
he was not in the ‘lambookie country or travelling sbout.

l.e 1eces LoCe Vol VII page Bl. Collins Tour 18(B.

e ULede 744 AeleTe The original reads "alwaar hy naar de
wyze dier natie zig een kaffers vrouw had genomen”,

3. ibid Trial of the 18 irisoners (147)-(152).

4, Lichtensteins Travels vol 1L p. 288 « L6uU,

5. 1ibla Pe £61.

6., 1ibid p. 366,
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The voctor's journal never tells us directly who
or what “Mrs puys' was, but from internal evidence it is
&lmost certsin that it was rary, whonhe calls a ottentot.
slchael de vsuys said thut his father's wife in saffirland
wis a light coloured bastard womaul. Un one occasion
van der aenp wished to baptiseé his convertas— the Hottentot
women,"wivea” of the fugitives, and their children, anc
4leo the children of rary's eldest daughter who was eighteen
years olda, and the children of a kaffir woman with whom
iary's husband live in polysamy. rary's husband demanded
tiat this should be done according to the rules prescribed
by his church, which he described minutely end which is
clearly the puteh keformed formulas. after some
wrangling on this subject iary's husband refused to allow
any of them to be baptised, This punctiliousness ebout the
Christian baptismal rites is amusing on the part of a poly=
gamiat, ~ That this was de ruys to whom van der femp was
alluding 18 supported further by the fact that Campbell
had heard of a colonis£ who had returned to the colony,
haeving both a kaffir and a bottentot wife.4

& Buys had thus gone native in some respects and
yet he still clung to certaln belicefs. 1t is impossible to
undsrstand his state of ming if we taue it that he wus cone
tent to accept the fact of his polygemy and the doctrines
he had been taught slde by side. iike all of us, when his
beliefs conflicted with his desires he must have tried to
reconcile the tLwo, terhays he drew on the patrisrchs for
precedent, and imagined himself an Abraham or & Lavid.
veyond the rish river his position in this respect was
easy enough, |
1. U. tHofmeyr. Twintig Jaren in de Loutpansberg p. €.

2, dJournal, 8 reb. 1l8ul, Jrerhaps the daughter of fifteen
promiged to UGaika in 1799.
3e Journel., reb. 8. 18.1.
4, Joln Campbell,. Travels 1816, p.633s. -
JeCo Voipgt, Frifty years - - - vol.l p.6€ stys "Lu kuils

was a mun of smorous dispos.tion. Like soloman he had
many wives or rather mistresses snd céncubines. The

mother of Gaika was one of these.
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At the end of 1799 teynier, who had been sent for,
owing to his previous experience in the district, ventured
into kaffirland to interview Gaika. tie tried to persuade
the missionaries to return to the colony. Galka gave
Edmonds permission to leave but was reluctant to part with
the voctor,

v@ buys had returned from the lambookies with
his fanily but refused to see a&aynier.2 A few days later
Tjaart van der «alt visited them with a free pardon for de
buys from General Dundas, who had come¢ to direct operations
in the karffir war himgelf, De Buys'declined"” this pardon?
which was granted only because it was regarded as essential
~ to dissociate him from ftaika. Une of the fugitives later
confessed that Gaika had been tempted to murder the
Cormiseioners (raynier and womerville) when they vislited him
in wecenber 1790 as they had been invited for this purpoae.4
Yaynier had no success with Gaika and wrote later "De Heer
vomerville vergezelde my in deeze Commissie en zal best
kunnen getuigen hoezeer Chyka door de instigatien van Buys
Cevsy welke zig in persoon by hem bevonden, Jegens het
Gouvernegsient was voor ingenomen.5

#hen van der semp attempted to leave, his waggon
wag turned back by the kaffira. dalke explained that this
was for his own safety snd to check raynier's "haughty and
arbitrary proceadinga.“e

#hat mede de ruys refuse his parvon ¥ He hated
the ingplish certsinly, and probably feared that he would
have to join the prisoners awaiting trial in the Castle
if once he entered the Colonye. ilerhaps he considered it
bettur to live as the leader of his band and a valued
counsellor to 4aika than to live in the colony as a poor
1. Journal lLec. 1&, 17989. There &re two entries marked

15 Lec. 88 Vedenemp discovered from saynier that he
was a day out in his reckoniny.
Se Juurnal Lec. 16, 1799.

3. ibid €. 21’ 1799.
4¢ necs Cola VOl 111 pe C13 heport of Cutmissioners.

B2 hRCenGagerHOIMAY esRet: Griindad-
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strugisling furmer, whose dJomestic affairs would be the
cbject of scorne - in Kuffirland he could live a free and
easy life and by hunting he could no doubt obtain sufficient
to trude with the colony for gunpowder and other small
necessaries., There were people willing to transact such

business for the fugitives as we have ssen before.

‘The Year 1800,

This year weg full of alarme &nd excursions for
those who lived with Quika. ke seems to have been partie-
cularly fickle and suspiclous during this period,

The party still consisted of raber, kKruger, the two
pothas, knoetze, tezuidenhout, Coenread de tuys, a few
deserterst and rlet rrinsloo and his wife who had Joined them .
ag=in, "Brother rdmond" had been allowed to depart
in pesce, They spent a fortnight building the Joctor's
house, about 3ul paces {rom de ruys' owne. The house was
24 feet by © feet and had two rooms.h All secemed peace=
ful enough.

Jun botha woea anxious to return to the colony and
set off', teking with him his wife and child, hans Knoetze,
and the wife and child of Xruger, who was away hunting
elephants,. Gaika had given reluctant consent, according
to van der hemp. Un the way they werc overtaken by
kaffirs who killed botha and took his cattle to Galka. The
rest of the party escaped. Gulka disapproved. He had told
Ndlambi of nmotha's departure, bit left it to him whether he
was to be allowed to puss or brought backS.

1. The Journal mentions only Thomas kentley by name.

2. ibid. 8U June, 1800,

3. ibido ebae 1L and 13' 18{}00
Galka sald that potha rad given him 4u oxen, 4 cows
and & gun in return for & sefe conduct to the colony
angd Ndlambil was informed of this, but murdered potha
and .took his possessions. salka demanded thelr
return for the widow byt had recovered only & horses,
< girls (meiden) and a sun. ANdlambi replied that
he was acting on Gaika's orders and the latter had
- taken back sotha's things and given them to his own
people.

b 46  Letter alberti to vangsens 19 _ec. 1BL3 enclosing
reporte of interviews with thé Chiefss 4s.CeTo
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Whoever was to blrme, it was & warnins to the
fugitives thut any attempt to resove with their possessions
to the colony wus dangerous, They were ordered to keep
t.gether anﬁ stay with de ﬁuyal, which looks a&s though
Gajke eould not protect them from the neightiouring clans.

shortly after, dissention broke out among the.
tribes and Ualks feared that he would lose many followers.
ve puys feared that his aild would be'called iny, in the evént
of a tribul war and he had suffician£ experience by then to
wish to avoid that. he therefore proposed that they should
yet a8 near the north eaatern boundaries of the Kosa country
as possible, in order to eacspe if neceeaury.p

Unfortunately the Jjournel for urchn is migsing.
The next e¢ntry on A ril, 65th .informs w = that de buys and
hia people were "in great terror® at the thought of being
killed by kaffirs, “he events of warch become clearer from
the records in the colonys aaynier was visited by
Conmandant ven hensburg,who had brought rrens Kruger from
Gaika, kruger and irinsloo had brought botha's widow from
m&ff&rland. They begged to be pardoned for not coming
before, but Galka refused to let them goe. They wwould no
longer remain with himyas he had taken all they posssssed.
Le puys was no longer on such good terms (bilen) with Gailka
and they did not know why he had a grudge agninst them.
rruger begred thet their feults might be pardoned, and thelr
departure from Gaike facilitated,ssynicr was unsympathetics
ke replied thut they hed gone of thelr own accord, that
vundes had payrdoned them,and that they must mske their own
arrengenents to leave Galka, Lventually he relented and
gave aruger six dogen buttons and s few pounds of beads to

le vournal 1l€ iebe 1800,
2 itia 24 Feb.
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8@tisfy yaika, saynier adds ,with apparent setisfuction,
Lthat he will sown have thie gang of recoubtable men in
his power and that irinsloo and Aruger have gone to fetch
their wivas,&nﬁ two deserters are on thulr way to the
drostdy as Wﬁllnl |
sir George Yownge's optimiatic rendering of
this news is "The Caffre Chief Chyka h&s even put to
beath one of the most violent of the fugitive kebels,
who wanted to prevent his concluding & peace with us, and
the rest he retulns as srisoners Lo be disposed of as the
Government shall think propert. #vanwhile the trial
of the prisoners in the Caatle was being arranged fore,
To return to kaffirland. The Veld Commsndant
Johannes irydan and two veldwagtineesters T.F. Lreyer
and reite srasuus wrote to de Buys,asking him to assure
Galka of thelr desire for peace with him. waynier,
they said, treated them vury well and made efforts to
to oﬁtain peace. They referred de buys to rrans Lruger
for news of the prisoners, &#s ke had spoken to the
Commissioner peraanally.a rrobably thie letter was
entrusted to iruger. whetﬁwr de suys finally received
it or not, the messages and reports brought back by
Eruger and irineloo from the colony may have helped to
pacify Galka agsine Gaika woes joined by & number of
tottentots and by his orders the whole company moved
about 3vU miles further east to the uebe.4
nere Galka wag persuaded by his Hottentot allies

tiat the whites had schemes against him, aika behaved

1. secs Cels Vol. Lli pe 111, Letter iaynier Lo ¥aje Cen.
LUNAdas . 26 "r&!‘ch, lEW'

2y s0Ce LaCe Vole 1id pe 16, olpr G. Younge to hte. lion.
Lo iamdas. 7 opril, 18W.

3, 8L 6, Letter from wessrs. .Lrydom Lreyer and
srasmus 1o Ce de buys. 7 April, 1Buu.

4, Journal. 18 to 28 .pril, 18u0,
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very insolently to the iuropeans and confessed thut he
had intended to kill them all, but had relented. The
boctor began to think that de buys' company was unsafe and
considered joining the nottentot kr&all- This naive
confession scems rather ungrateful to his protectors.

Un kay 17th, de Buys, sruger (who had not left
kaffirland after all) and sentley, rode to the Colony.

The Loctor says nothing of the object of this visit but on
their return they ail moved to the reiskanms, nearer the
Colony. rere they were folluwed by Gelka and one of his
wives and thirty 0f his followers who salu thet they
intended to stoy with thoem owing to an "epidemic fever” of
which the natives were cyihg- Saika no doubt felt safer,
where he had de puys and the Loctor to pray for him in
event of illnesas,

{n June 15th the Locter writes, "all cur colonists
went on a journey to the Colony". sentley was left to
look after the old man, the women and children. Again
no mention is made of their purpose, but they may have kept
the facts from van der Lemp. They must have concocted some
mad scheme for bargaining for the release of their friends
in the Castley or perhapg they tulked themselves into the
belief thut they could invade the colony successfully.>
The detulls are rather meagre . The party, among whom
were probably some k&ffiraé;Qadvunced safely 10 the
pavicans river were they were beaten back by the chief
Conga, who refused to bave the peace disturbed agains.

» messenger wag sent to Galka to complain of
thuse rebels, who tnrestened the colony with war and
invasion in his nome.  Salka replled that he would make
1, wvournal, B and 9th way, l8UU.

e ibide 6 June, 18U | |
3 and Se €0 CeCe 144 pe 213. Confession of C. Eotha
15 wugy 18U,

4, ieC, CoCo Ldle pe 369 Letter oir G.o Younge to nthilhie
ho ‘.:undﬂa 5 dm‘leill.
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no treaty without de puys and that the chief term on which
he would consent to peace was that his allies, the prisoners
in the Castle, must be relessed, before which he would

accept no present.l

The prompter berind this reply 1s
cbvious.

Christoffel votha, who was brought to the drostdy
a prigoner, confessed thut de cuys' object was to drive the

whglish out of the colony anc thut several Boers knew of the

wh
intention which was at Unika's command. Frang Kruger was
to be zeneral and de buys sowreign The Coumissioners were

to be curried off to kaffirlend, where they woulu be teated
exactiy as the inslish should trsat the soers in the caatle.g

The invaders, hovever, were disappointed as the
militia (burgher cormondos) were cailed out and thesuurveld,
Sneeusbery snd prulntjes Hoo;te were ready to repulse an
attack.s This reid apparently took place in July, for
early In august, from the 3r¢ to the Bth, we find the
disappointed deliverers of their country wreaking their
illtemper on poor old vun der hemp, who compleins thut éll
tre children have been kept away from his lessons. e
mentions no names,nor gives any reacon for his disfavour, but
eimply ends mysteriously, "The plan for killing me was laid
s .de by the wonderful Interference of God". ke held to
his principles too, for shortly after he refused to bajtize
raburts child until its parents should produce fruits meet
for repentlnce.4

Unfortunately this wao an extremely dry season and
the woctor whe constantly plagued by Gaika and his followers
to pray for rain. ‘hat vas religion for, if not to make rain
1.  iec. Cols VOle 111 pe E1L. sxtracts from Commissioner's
FX-IFI0Y o 4N
Ca  bece Cole Vols 111 pe £13. Confession of Ce 0ths
18 augy 18Ul

3¢  1€Ce Cele Vole 111 pe 368. Lettur oir . Younge to ut,

HoOTi, tie sutidas & d&n,lﬁnl-
4. Journal 23 aug, 1800,
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—ometines he was fortunate and his preyers were answered,
but still the natives hinted that there were malevolent
jeople who were stoppin; up the hole from which the rain
came, shen the party returncd to their old plece on the
helskamma they found it very dry, vuan der hemp's house and
the surrounding gruss being burnt.l

olr Guorge Yotwnge, who was convinced that mission-
ary labour was merely & cloak for deep political schemes and
Jacobin plots, refused permission to two missionaries who
wistied to Jjoln van der hemp,”because'" he says,” 1 have
undoubted 1nt&111§enee that  Vanderkemp, who has been making
excuges for not leaving guyka, tho repeatecly required, has
been propagating not Christianity but the very irinciples
above stated (Jacobin ) and is at this morent the Confiden-
tial rriend and Companion at Guykuas of the fugitive hebel
Conrad de puys, of whom the nxtract of the Lomrs, ulepatched
8y€8Ke They are insepsreble, live and lodge topether at
Guykas anc thuere is every reéson to think de buys ls very
far from being convurted or discoursged by his new friend
and Lompanion‘"g This is certuinly a very different 1idea
of their relations to that given by the Journal, but then
the ;yo0d Doctor dues not tell us everyting, A4 Tew months
later oir SGeorge writes another indignant letter explaining
that vah der Kemp had tried to approach the government through
the riscal, without the comuiseloner's knowledge, He
wished t0 ,ropose , privavely,a treaty with Gaika, "the
jurms of which hud a tendency to enyage us in a war in supe-
port of ualka with some of his inemies, as he celled them,

and this aa, the uigsionary professes, from a love of iwvace,

though_: oliticks_are i wde

in his .phe

1, Journal auge &3 180,

e nuecs Lele VOole LI Po 34U irivate L‘Cet@r'uir Ge YOWQ
to iite HOD. Le LUNAAS, o (€L, 1BLG.

Ge rCe Lele vOle 44l pe 381l settor oir. S. Yownge to
rle HON. e ;uandas, 8 Jan, leEul.
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wganwhile the temper of the kaffirg was getting
| more uglye Three shipwrecked .nglish sailors were killed
by the people of Gaika und umlao, The family of Ccenraad
bezuldenhout profited, as they took from them two bags of
coffee beans for thelr own use.l wome -nerlish deserters
wure alpo illtreated by Geika and his people.2 The
tezuidenhouts and rabers had moved to the Goubusei(kebusie)® 4
and the natives were buginnings to stenl even de tuys' cattle.?
The party therefore deciced to fight their way
through the "Castern posjesmen” =~ probably those near the
«wtormberpen « Iin order to find a new count.r;y‘5 Un lec. 28th
the duetor writes, The Colonists who apprelended thoemselves
to be In coneiderable danger among the Caifrees (though 1
believed their fear to be a mere panic) resolved to escape
from this country but were undecided where to go.” (n the
last day of the year they therefore set out on a trek which

was 1o lact for four monthus.

The Year l8ul.

Thelr first stege was to the sabusle river,
van der demp was nearly drowned in crovasing, but was saved
by de wuys who hurried to his assistance, They had got 8¢
far on the pretext of hunting elephants, sc some of the
kaffirs had accompanied them. These had to be shaken off
before they could procaad.ﬁ’ They managed to get rid of
them by the 6th Januvary. The purty then consisted of £9

l. Journsl 7 LOV. 1BUO.

~e ibid 18 nov. 28LUL

3. ibia 31 et and 13 nove 18ul,
4. ibi(lo 1. Hove lﬂw.

5. ibid 13, Deco. lPUG. .

6. 1ibiad 2 Jan, 1l8Ul,.
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souls, They hud a cart, three waggons and 25 horses as
well as sheep, goats and over 3.0 cattle.l'

Their route, as near 4s can be made out from the
Journal, must have becen & rough half circla»from the Kabusie
up the west bank of the Kei river as fur ag the Jtormbergen
and then on to the pamboesbergen and down to sSchape'nkraal
in the Carke ¢istrict,

rrom the start they were harassed bty the kushman,
who wounded pentley with two polsonec arrows. They dured
not lipght fires by uight anc 80 were troubled by 1iona,2
40 thet they made “abbatis" and built huuaea.a

by day the sushmen were less formidable ag raber
managed to seize ZU ka{fir beasts from them,for which van der
semp says he reprimanded him, "but without effect“.4 Two
Hottentots and the kaffir tried to desert with five of the

horaes but on being pursued they were¢ found murdersd in a

1., Journal € Jan, l8ule The party {s vnuseruted as

Tfollowgim=
1 missionary 2 uutch wotmen 2 iutch children
4 colonists 1 kaffirwoman 13 pastard children
1 kaffirman 2 kaffir girls 16 tottentot
1 Tambookieboy 6 nottentot children.
4 mottentots WOmen o
1 slave
1 dermen deserter
& :nglish deserters.
18 nmen 11 women 3u ¢hildren,
The colonists were pezuldenhout, hruger, rabor and de
Huysg.
The Lutch wowen were probably the wives of the first
two raen, .

The Keffir woman was - robably one of de¢ upuys' wives,

and the tottentot women were oara, réte, betay, ieentjle

iraber's wifel) %ary (de buys' wife’) and one other.
the s¢lave as Lsmin "o Hohometan nindu", and one
inglishir n was rerntley.

P ivide € Jan, 18ul,

3. {bi¢ 13.49an, 1801
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most shocking manner by the tushmen, who collected together
in a vast number, whistling snd shouting at the pursuers,
who had to r@treat.l They declded therefore to move
furtter north wlere they were less molested,”

tiere they even had time for a little relaxation,
as appears from an entry on Ctth kasrche "The colonists
taving got some wine from the colony diverted themselves
by intoxieating the scldiers whieh ended in riot and
bluaapleny" . rlans had buen sade to steal Tarbouvkie
cattle or dalka's horses but this was “frustrated by God's
1nterventian",3 as horse-sickness had appeared and two
tiottentes and 14 horses were killed by polsoned arrows,

80 that they decided to move nearer the colony for aafety.4

They reached the Haazenfontein on kareh 31st, the
colonists declaring that it was the highest point in thre
country. From here hruger rode to the colony with letters
from ven der nemp asking for transport to the colony, and a
letter to «r. womerville on behalf of de buysso This letter
heg not been found. it may have been another request for
pardon,us he had novw succeeded in escaping from Calka,

By the &7th «pril the party had got through the
sarboesburgen and was on colonial territory. They stopped
at oschapenkranl, about four miles from the boundary in the
Toarka diatriat.a seguldenbout offered hils wuggon to

7

transport the Loctor to ven der salts place’, where he ob-

tained money Lo pay the people with whom he had been living,

fees the fugitivea.a gefore he left, von der kemp waa
1. dournal &f Jzn, 184,

2, ibid 30 Jan.

3. ibldg 28 zarch.

4, ibid 26 uarch.

B. ibid 6 ﬂpril.

Co iie woadia} The hecord iart V. lE08-1800 page 6.
7. dournal 27 April, 18Ul
8. ibid 3U Ept‘il, 1801,
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able to write, "By the mercy of the Lord i got an oppor=
tunity to converse freely with puys on the concerns of his
aoul"l. A3 they were going to part de vuys no doubt
listened patiently to a little sermon,

#y the middle of xay, the missionary was in
Graaff neinet, where maynier told him thuat only the fear
of endangering hisafety had prevented the government
from sending a force to take the fupltives from Saika.g

shortly after,messengers arrived from Julka, who
sald he was very grieved to have lost van der kemp and that
de buys had always tried to stir up the Kings mind againat
him, but that he had always resisted these attempts,
Although de huys would not huave wished vun der kemp to
usurp his place as the ring's counsellor, he could eagily
have persuaded Gulka to send vén der kemp back to the
colony if he had really wished him out of the way.

The Logtor wus tlso ahocked to hewar that cattle
had been extorted from dailkae in his n&me7in order that he
should pray for rain., i Buys had probably "siven" so mueh
of his property to Saika, whowas extremely covetous, that
one is inclined to sympathise with him if he took what the
unpractical Doctor did not want.a

The presence of “"Gaika's clique"4 aedded another
disturbance to the frontier, The fTarmure were desperate
ag a result of kaffir and Hottentot depredstions and could
get no satisfaction from mayniert who reported thut the

5

natives were behaving well., in July the farmers

apreared in arms at the drostdy and demanded redreas,

maynier sscribed the rising to various ressons given, he

1, Journal 3v aApril, 1&¢l,.

. ivid 14 Baye

3« 1bid 19 xay. a

Ge 1€Ce Lelie VOls LV pe 34 Letter &ynier to Un., lundas
(%) July 1BUC.

5. 1ibvia Pe &6,
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said, by the farmers.

The usual sort or rumours were gpread. ¥our
hundred armed menwere approaching and they would be joined
by a large number from owellendam under TJjuart van der
«alt,anu . . de puys with thousands of kaffirs would be
there too.l
| saynier geid that the well-intentioned furmers
had not the courage to support the government owing to
the threats of & band of {li-intentioned men, who forced
them to join their party and threatened that if the rising
failed aﬁﬁ they were forced to retreat they would flee
with their booty to the uroot ﬁivieruand to Namagualand,
This party he sald consisted of people who hud nothing to
loge and who &ere thus capable of committing any crime;
such men as :iet iring, rrans nruger, the rcozuidenhouts, the
~nglish deserters - all Gaikes clique,except de chru;;ra.:'{3
e buys at this time was probably trying to reinstate
himself as & wood burgher, L1t will be remembered that
van der kemp had written to comerville on his behalf, In
audiiion there 1g 8 letter from van nensburg to de suys,
in which he excuses himself for not going to see de ruys
as he had been requested, owing to his having no horses,
Nevertheless, he assures him that he is trying to arrange
matters for him "om ¢en wverbetering voor u te soeken"” and
advises him to write to the Commipsioner, even if only to
let him know where he can be found. Van'nenaburg ends
by saylng “ook hebbe ik ondersoek gedaan na die Jabuleusje
woorde die wy hier gehoort hebbe gehat maar ik ken gantz
geen grond kryge van de scak als alles leugenagtig"a.
le heCe wobe VOlse LV pe &9 Letter iaynier to Jen., .undes

(%) July 1Buu,

2 irid p. 34

3e 85U 34. Letter Hedevan nensburg to L. de puys 16 Eaj,
1801. YA';.CQT.
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Could he be referring to the rumour thut the govuirnment
intended pressing them for goldiers and sailora, which
was one of the ressons given by wmaynier for the discontent
on the frontier ¥

iLe Buys' efforts to try and gain a pardon must
have beuen known to saynier, for which reason he excludes
de Buys' name from the list of disturbers, according to
Collins the fugitives who remained after van der Kemp
left ochapenkrasal, returgfto the T'sy (kel) and some
of them went even beyond the country of the Tambookies,
This he must have heard from Coenruad teszuidenhout's son,

1. e Buys was aaid to have brought

who wes his guide,
to the colony a "iambookies” girl from the second nation
beyond the kaffirs (Xosas is meant) but this may also be
inaccurate, “ if de iuys ever visited xetal, it must
have been at this time (180UZ) and not before 1794 as
has been auggestad.s wichael de puys sald that before
returning to the colony they went to satal and to the
0ld place of the "RKaalkaffers®" of which he did not know
the name, There his father took the sister of
mogelikatse and they were married in the colony. Her
children were poris, tGabriel, Jan, ktuba and sichael
himﬂﬂlf-4

keanwhile, traaff reinet remained disturbed
and compluints ayainst waynier poured in, some from the
most law abiding farmers, 8o that when the drostdy was
again threatened in Uctober, troops were sent to relieve
maynier and he was recilled., 4t was announced that the
farmers' grievances would be investigsted, after which the
ls rece Co Co VOla VII pe 7.
Ze John Campbell, Travels 181l6. p. 833,

3e G freller., Sketse ¢ Upstelle - Ekuys en oy hure.
4, o Lofmeyr. Twintig Jaren - = = - p, €,
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people were easily diaperaed.l

For the remainder of the periocd during which
the knglish held the Cape, some efforts were made to deal
with XKosa and hHottentot marauders, but nothing definite
was achlieved and the boers lost their respected leader,
Tjaart van der salt. shen the batavian Government
took over in 1l8&u3, the frontier districts had been
practically abandoned by the farmers.

The failure of van der Kemp's migsion to the
Xosas has been aseribed to de buys' opposition. There
may be some truth in this, but there were more pertinent
reasons for failure than that., Lichtenstein macribes
his fuilure to the fact that the Xosas regerded him as a
magician and a rainmaker, and, as his prayers were not
always answered, he had to take safety in flight.a
Thisis substantiated too, by many passages in the ULoctor's
Journal,

it 18 obvious that the Xosas had no desire for
his doctrines nor could he help them economically as the
missionaries did for the remmants of tribes in basutoland
later, He seems to huve realised this himself, and,
while still awmong the Aosas, devoted himeelf chlefly to
the stray Hottentots he found there. These he found
80 much more amenable,that he made Hottentot missions his

future tasgk,

1. necs CeCs VOls iV pe 97 irouclemation 29 hov, 1801,
2. Lichtenstein's Travels. Vol. L p. 318,
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CEAFTRR VI.

A return to the Colony. 1803 - 1813,

then the Cape passed inte the hands of the
patavian republic a proclamation was issued whick pardoned
all foruer offences of a political nature;l The
prisonuers in the Caatle whose aentenéea had been postponed
from time to time were set at liberty after their case had
been examined.< General Janssens then set osut on a
tour of the country to sce what could be done to restore
peace and prosperity in the eastern dis@ricts?

une of the first tasks he set nimselfl was to induce
the colonists living with the kaffirs to leuve them, as he
distrusted their influence there. 4 letter wus sent to
de muys,asking him to come o Algoa bey, g he might be
of great help in arranging termg with the natives owing to
his relations with Gaike. Janssens sppealed to de ruye
ag to one who is a friend to his country, the iutch colony
in couth africa. he writea that he is sure de cuys will
help "duar ik veronderstel dat het belan; van het Land dear
glj geboren zijt en de grootste tijd van u leavenlggg}gef
brecht u altoos dierbaar iaéa This was the right appeal
to make to one who had been cslled "the honeat protector
of our Kative Country"s Hendrik van rensbury w~as also
requested 10 meet the Governor.e

Janssens wrote that the cagtern frontier was in
a deplorable state. His meéaengcr had returned and sald
thet van renaburg waes on his way to join the Governor, and
le B 18 prroc. 1 sarch 18.3. A+CeTe
“s BH 1 fesolution 3v garch 18.3. AsCeTe \
3« 4 s 88 Lﬁttﬁr 16N, Janssens tq Ce dg psuys 8 .pril 1803,
£¢ heC C.L?.;gi: 11l sentence of the Court. p. 258

€. Theal relang cist.ooce Vol 11l pe &23e Letter Janssens
to e pist 1¢ April, 183,
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that Caika and de tuys would meet them at the rsish river
drift at the appointed time. ne adds, "puys zal 1k
trachten minzaam voor altoos uit Rafferlasnd te krygen"l.

The kaffirs in the colony said thut they would
not return until they had fought against Uuika and they
begped that de puys might be removed from xaffirlﬂnﬁg.
in the middle of June de puys ceane to camp with four
deserters and asked the Governor te come nearer Galka's
kraasl,as he feared his enemies. ue Buys was asked to
persuade Ualka to make peace and to return to the Colony
and he agre.d to both these propaaals.a

Galka was next interviewed ang declsred himself
willing to pardon his enemies mnd to make all the .uropeans
leave kaffirland, only de ruys he desired to keep, as he
knew his country and the colony and could met as intermediary
{tusschenspraak). To this Janasens would not agree,saying
that de Nuys was coming out to live with his family, but
would still remain ajka's friend,

xhen asked whether sayhier or iresler had ever

instigsted him to etfck the inhabitants, walke replied that
Meynier hac sent him pregents and said that if he would
attack and destroy (anvallen en vernielen) de buys and ven
Rensburg he should have hnlf the horses and all the cattle,
the sheep being for saynier himself.a #aynier cortuainly
negotiated for de ruys' capture, but he would hever have
been so foolish as to make such susgestions. .ither Talka
wiis given distorted messages,or he had been primad 1o make
thic reply. The whole statement, is o,en Lo grave coubt
l. bh 93. Letier vanssens to de kist J31 warch 1803 AedleT,
Se BH 97. p 1754 articles for making peace with the

paffirg. oetels
3e thenls wpelno, Histe L0Ce Vole 111l p. <48. Janssens Lo

de wist 7 July, 1£.3. Lichtensteln's Travelas.

Vole L. Pel90 / 39C.
4, HEK 93. account of intervicw with Tsika., dJune l1803e AsleTe
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ag the interproters were de buys himself, and the tiottentot,
rlatda.l

Janssens confided to de kist that of all the strange
people gathered topether In the district, the most striking
(marquanste} were lendrik Janse van lensburg and Coenraei
de buyss. e considerdd them both very intelliyent men,
and thought that something could be made of van sengburg who
had ambition and could be trusteds e tuys, however, he
considered dangerous and untrustworthy. kis stay in kafTir-
land was a series of intrigues, Although some thought he
was useful to the Colony there, vanssens believed the
contrary. He had great influence over taika, but was
hated by all his Captalns and the kaffirs in the colony.

Janssens considered that de buys had put Gaika
into a dangerous position by his adviee,as the chief mixed
his words with "vertellingen, vorderingen en verdraaying-
eén die niets anders dan het gevolg van inblasingen waren®.
be buys could realise how they felt towurds him and seemed
rather absshed (bedeesd) when he appesared in Camp.. He
expressed his longing to return to the iLong Kloof, iwellene
dam, &nd as this e-reed with Janssens' plans he urged him
to leave as soon as possible, so that he could acquaint de
mist with the true state of the kaffirs., Janssens acvised
de zist that it would be best not to make this letter,
warning: him ggainst de buys, ;;pub.'t.,‘ucz..;j

i few months later he further qualified his opinion
of de buys by saying thet he considered him the most dangerous
man in the colnny.s
1., Ceds 3332, Interrogation of Jacobus, Johannes <eemans A«CeT
Ce Theals pelang. hist. loce vOleslIl pe £33 Letter Junssens

to de wist, € July, 1803.

3. Letter Junssens to de kistle Cet, 1843 (from a Fhotostat
copy received from the .tate .rchives, 'sGravenhage.)
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Johanies bizguldenhout was interviewed at

Groaff helnet on a complaint made by Geika that a k.ffip
in his service had been beaten Lo death, .bezuidenhout
replied thet he had employed a nutive who had later vone
Lo Burve de Luys. He had beuten him tor theft ,but the
kaffiyr was in pood health and only died three mcntha lzter.
sie demended thst de bBuys should bring witnesses to prove
what he suid. Le buys, he addeé¢, was an iniriguer
(intriguant) who had not a single friend and who had been
of no account since his carliest years (niets het gedeupd).
He had alwsys been a alsturber (oproermsaker) and persecutor
(vervolier) of Christians a3 well as blacks and had caused
Galka to bring this charge against him to damage him and
bring him into bad repute with the suthorities.? This
little tirade is quite mild compured with some of the
accusstiony these people brought against each other,

Seneral Janssens left a small force &t fort
sredrick to keep order whd returned to the vapital,while
de wuys went back with Gaika 1o feteh his family and
possessionss e sesmed in no hurry to keep his word ana
the keffirs in the colony, in spite of Galka's promises,
regeinec there, Conga saying that he must first gather his
cropak, and otherscomplaining that de bkuys was still with
Gaika, instizuting him againast them.d

(ornelis raber appearwé at Graaff helnet with two
waggon loads of cablnet-wood (werk hout) for sales, The
randdrost informed him thut i they appeared in the colony
apain without having taken final leave of kaffirlund,they
would be arrveted and sent to the eapital‘q
1. BE 93 p 3l (undated but July 1£03) Het gewsl ven

Johannes wezuldenhout,. AeCoTs

2+ Bk dgrLﬁttar saje Ve Gllten to Janssens. 26 et 18038,
3. bﬂ;gé:.gétuur €ptn Alberti to vanssens v Nove 1803.

ael nT-o
4. bLiv 45 letter Alburti to Janssens. 19 .eeld 180G3e Al aTs
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in Leptenber messages hed arrived at Graaff-
Heinet from Salka,compliining that Ldlambi still robbed
and nurdered and asking for advice,as he dia not wish to
break his contract with the governor. Le was keeping de
tuys too, until he had inetruetions what to do, as he did

not regurd it gafe to let him go.l

van Gilten wus
wnary becsuce these tweassges should huve come to hinm
direct wnd he thought it all & ruse on de Buys' part
to make troucle, and would not belleve unything against
iaika's enemies.

albertl took over Fort Fredrick anc sent two
letters to de buys from the governor, ordering the Landdrost

to el a receipt for Lhem when they were lLanded over to de

-

Buys.d

The chiefs in the colony were inturvicwed,
but thore was not much ho,e¢ of getting them to move without
force, as they femred.jaika and distrusted de buys,
Adlumbl declared that 1f he was distrusted for the death
of Jun botha an escort could be gent to fetch de Luys
from Gaika.4 dhen this interview took place de
Buys had already been on colonlal territory for eight
gays, four colonists having velunteerd to go to saffirland
with a wargon to fetch him.5
AL bruintjes Hoogte de bBuys, raber and an
tnzlish deserter Jon Naader (Lichtenstein calls him
John Lucder) met Alburti on their way to Greaff leinet,
from whure they intended going to the Long Aloof, This
removed the last of Galika's clique. 6
we Luye reported thut uaike was tryin: o incuce
all the chiefs except Ndlambi, to return to him. He
had also huard from Thomas Eentley th:t he, the bezulden-
houts, ths .ochenbergs and some other deserters were
l. br.42 Letter Gerotz to knje V Gilten 8 UctelBO3 AlCeT.
Le BRede Letter kaj.v Cllten to Jangsens L6.0Ct.1B803¢ AWllT
3e LFed3e ietter alvertl to Lanct.Gurotz. 31 C1e1BU3 ALCWT
These lutiers were duted l.th o 1€th Oct.1803 but I have
ggtlgggg gglgnég.trace tﬁem. They were probably orders

R (see unclosure), .c.m
buses ki 45 Lettir alberti to Jansaens 19 “d42C2g0a. L
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planning 1o go to welagoa bay wna were waiting for powder
acd ammunition from the vape, They hoped Lo get othurs
from the Colony to join thewm, They were prevented

from getting thelr ammunition and so forced to keep along
the Urarge kiver and so voenraad kezuidenhout was evene
tually caught amd brought back.l «~& bBuys seemed detere
mined that all his wsaociates should be forced to follow
the lawful pathe,since he had decilaed to Go 80.

e further reported that centley hid warned him
to be cuareful ,as the Governor was sent by the srince and
not by the Luteh government, apparently they had so
many tales to tell that alberti nc longer knew what to
believe. lie says, "Ik beken met deezer zsak verlegen
geraskt te zyn. Cognrszad de ruys 1s te welnig te bee-
trouwen als dat men op het geen hy zegd zZoude kunien te
werk.gaan, en wie weet wat hem beweegt het bovengemelde te
vertellen"<,

In swellendam de buys settled on his farm “G' Op-
komst over de Lange en sprter de Attaguas Claaf“.3 This
was probably the farm formerly held Ly his brother thanneaq.
This farm appesrs to have been granted to voenrsad by the
government ,but there is no record of this, nor of the terms
on which he held it.

The followiny year, while on tour, de sist visited
this neighbourhood and asked de Iuys to come and meet him
ana we «re fortunate to have hure Lichtenstein's
description of him «

“"He woe invited to meet Us &nd camc on the
thirty first of iecember. | The representations to which
rumour, too much addictsd to exaggerwvtion, had gliven us
l. Gr.Hte £5 Letter .lberti to doeke 17 Jan.dB20€, ALl.T,
s Blie 45 Letter sdbertl to Janssens. 12 LecslEC3. 4T,
3se Je 293¢ Qpg 8Lrol, #.CeTo
4, oe0e &7 po &39. Johannes de buys takes “d'Opkomst aan

de Kougs agter de attaquas ~loof 1780 «1790 & B.G.
43, for 1794.
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beforehany of this extraordinary man, were corrected from

the moment of his entrmice. His uncormon height, for he
measured nearly seven fuet; the strength yet admirable
proportion of Lis limbs, his excellent carriage, Lis firm
countenance, bis high forehesd, his whole¢ mien, and a certain
dignity in his movements, made altogethur a most pleasing
imeression. ~uch one misht conceive to bave been the
heyoes of ancient timesa; he seemed the living figure of

a lercules, the terror of his enemles, the hope and support
of his friends., #8 found in him, and it was what according
to the descriptions given we had little rokson to expect,

a csrtaln modesty, a certain retiredriess in his manner

and conversation, a mildness and kindness in his looks and
mien, which left no room to suspect that he had lived several
years among the savegss, and which still more even cone
tributed to remove than hic conversation the prejudice we
had concelved sgainst hinm, ie willinely gave information
concerning the objectsupon which he wes questioned, but care-
fully avoided spesaking of himself and his cémnection with

the caffres, This restraint, which was of'ten accompanied
with a sort of significant smile, that spoke of the inward
consciousness of his own powers, and in which was plainly

10 be read that hiy forbearance was not the result of fesr,
but thet he scorned to satlsfy the curiosity of anyone at

the expense of truth, or of his own pursonal reputation,

made him more interestin: to us, and excited our sympathy
much more than it would perhaps have buen excited by the
relation of his 9t0ry21 From this glowing deseription

of de buys, then about fourtye-three years of age, we 8e¢e that

1. Lichtenstein's Travels., Vole. I p. <61,
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he haa ot lost his pow.r to charm ang interest those with
whott his came into eontact.l

ihere must have been others thoush, who were
not 80 charmed at having this notordus figure living
amongst thetn. rids brethery In veeping with the family
tradition for violence, was summonsed during: this period
for insolence to the veld commandant re.He vin kooyen, for
which he was geverely rvprimaﬂdad.;

£ few months later Coenraad de nuys sent in &
complaint, in the fors éf & memoriel askin thut his
preserce might be recognised. aa iegal.3 Although the
memorial wes written by & netary, the siyle of the ducumnent
is typical of Coenratd, He¢ begins bty suyines that he will
not go into the causes which ivd to ki total destruction,
the ruin of his numercus household, nor tell of the mis-
fortunes hne has wrestled through durdng the pust eight or
nine yuars; nor is he actuated by revenge apainut those
“whom he considers ihe causes and instruments of his 1ll-
fortunes e is only thankful that irovidence buas given him
Lhe power to endure and the gooa fortune to return after
many yuars among the heathen nastions, to the land of his birth
under the rule of those appointed to their high positions
by the rzatevian goverrment,

Iy however, he is to remain peacefully among
his compuairiois, he wishes to inform the Conmissary General
that Guring the time the wnglish government was at the Cape,
o notice was publighed declarding him an outluw and offering |
a hundred rixdollars for his capture, alive or dead.
1. "alud Journual®™ of de kist'e Tour, Theals kelang. Hist.

woCe Vole 111 mentions an interview with de buys on
31 .ec.l8C3, but gives nc details.

S G'dam 1ll. Jo de Buys. £3 Lec.lB8C2.
3., Uriginal .cacrial from o photostat copy from the Jtate

archives 's Jravenhage. Copy in BR.1I1 wnesolutions
18 iay, let4,  The meworial is not dated.
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I has lory éince forgiven this murderous attempt on his
life btut would like it to be made known, just s publicly,
thait by hae returned to the Colony with the full consent and
knowledge of the highest authority in the colony, to live

as & gquiet and peuceful burgher, under the protection of

the lawse  he begs thut this nutice arainst him wmay be
declered null and void,se thet not the slightest "infumie

Juris" may rest,or be consldered to have rested on him,

Y
e encloses & copy of the "Bekendmaking® of 14th Feb.l798.

e grather from this thit some of his neighbours
cagt black looks on him and thut he wos attempting everything
in his power to wige out the pust andg begin «iresh. " his
petition was discussed in Council on hay lbth,. e Buys
was to be informed that\hia parcon wuas included in the general
amnesty given on 1 werch 18.3. - Further, his return had
been made, not only with the knowledge of, but by the express
communda of the Jovernor und General -in-Chief and that he
might live free snd uncisturbed amony the other inhabitants
as long s he behuved well, The decree of outlswry was
now canceliled and non-eftfectives. he was to be sent  copy
of these resclutions which he could have repristered at the
drostdy at Grsaffe-;e¢inet, or wherever he considered it
neceaaary.l

4¢ hear no morce of de Buys durding the batavian rule
and for the first few years he probably tried hard 1o settle
down in his new suritowiuin. s with his "numerous househola”
The revolutionury wars in .urope continued and in 1E806
General Janssens was forced to relinquish the vape to &
surc¢rior wnglish furce. Up to 1x)4 the wupe woas held
Ly right of conguest and there wugs still 8 chance that it

would have to be restored to the sutch when peace was finally

l. BK 111 sesolution 1 jmy, 1614 asCeta
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declared, | wdring all these yesars dé buys lived quietly
und we hear compuritively little of Bim,.
in darch 1B(O one, surthinus kenderon, was granted
a lounefarm, .. Loorn ﬁiviﬁr} which he mllowed Ceenraad to
occupy . The farm lay between the iong iloof and the
attaquas kloof, nuar therefors, to his other furm, d’kaomﬂt.a
In (etober his nenrest neighbours, J.b. Heyns, O. Heyns and
fiede Fourie complained thut this ferm should not have been
granted . d@s it lay tLoo near tﬁuirs ang took ail the water
from the upper reaches of the Loorn river before it could
reach them, In uddition, i. Heyns' farm was ulso used as
an utspan, s8¢ that it was agalnst the custom of the land to
Lhave granted ienderon this farim. ue buys was appurently
not & popular idghbour as the kemorial states that the grant
was detrimentnl to the wmtwr‘ana grazing of tie inhabitants
who used the wutspan anc benefitted oneé who was unworthy
of the government's favour #'"aan ingezetene bevcoordeeld
die¢ caden ne diefte anaakende aan zig heeft loaten virsijten
onuer zijne beschuldigers divs wegens te regt te doen
steilen - en dus 's Gouvernements m;unst onwaardiy ias”
They offurced Lo pay the sume ront for 1t as «e¢nderon paid
in order that the farm might bu used solely a8 an Outspan
place.4 in January 181l the farm was exanined by the
neemrsad nousgeau ,who founc thut the compleints of the
neighbours were Justified. The landdrost and hivemraden
therefore reported to the Colonial Uffice that, in their
l. and 3. CeQs 43 Landt. & Leemraden to Lol. Uff, 18 karch
1&&9, report on memoriuls for .and (H.J.cenderon)
£ and 4. ﬁ:§;£.5;. semorisl of [eyns ¢ kourie 8 vct,l8(9

and on the back of second page appecrs the report
of the livemrasd J. noussesu 889, Jhiy 1BElle auClT.
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opinion, the grast ought to Le withdrawn, and the
occupler compelled Lo evacuate the ground.l In april
1812 de Huys pald €0 Rés. rent for the Tari, & note stating
that the rant had expired in lﬁllca
{11 other ways lifé was not Loo ¢agy for him either.
in ¢ dispute «ith a liottentot gervent re had to confess
toat he had engeged the wan before the registering of cone
tracts bucune comﬁulsory.a at the end of the same year
the Landdrost repriounded a veldecornet for his unjust
behaviour towards & de buys. The velocornet Justified hisa
behaviour by sayin,s that the Commundant :inde hud ordered
all rottentots to we cslled up for military duty if they
Lhud ho contractis. On this Jde Buys' furm,no contracts were
found, 80 allvhia gervants were takun.4 although no
Christian nome i given in this inctance, it may very likely
have been Coenruad, taxkins into consiceration the first case
and the fact that his "opguaf” phowed a great ducrease in
sottentot servants from lE1l to 1313.5
in the kaffir war at this period the Landdrost
—tockenstrom snc nine others were massacred by the kaffirs,
one of these beiny rhilip Buys, &8 halfbreed int@rprwtwr.s
He was most probably one of Coenraad's sons.
During his stay in the colony de buys had sowme
of his children bupiised. we Villiers pives the nomes of
thrce, song of marién(calieﬁ wary by van der nemp ¥) and
Lofmeyr says he found the bapgtismal certificate of iichael
1. 20 100, pkeport on kemorial of lHeyns andé Fourle 9 uep,
1811le A4uCaTe
we CO BCs Lyst der gecolleécteuvrde .ecognitie penningensiC.T.
3o S'dam 17. ~dnute 31 Jan, 18lle 4eCeTe
4, s'dam 17. wetter Veldet. Jode van rensburg to Landt.
1S Dece 1Bll. ~eCeTe
B¢ Jde €97 & Jo 684 iils name coes not appear on the list for
161, AsleToe

€e Theal Vole IVe pe £84, The original report cannot be found
Te CoCs de Villicrs, o1d Cape familles. Voles 1 pe 127,
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tea.l There were probably others but they may huve been
Christened by the missionsries, if at all.

Un 8th January, 1811 a certeain Ccenread #illem
de tuys married Catherina vorothes Keyering., The letter
of consent wis signed by his fathur "Ceie Euys" and entered
in the register as "consent van zyn vader C de Buya"a.
wverything points to this being Cuenraad's son. There wag
no other Ce de Puys In the district at this Lige. in the
"opgaafl rollen® their namces appesr in succesgsion as Coenraad
senior and (oenraad junior.a a later will of the wife
of a Coenrasd #illem de é‘mys4 gives the name of one of the
children as retrugs = a conmon name in Coenrdsd's femily, so
that they were probubly descendants. The difficulty is
that this signature of 1811 differs very much from his other
three si-matures of 1787, 1768 and 1l8.4, which all agree
closelys but this.may have been a delilberate disgulse
of signature, for obvious rcasonse.

In 181 the burghers not lving in the Graaff-ieinet
or Uitenhayge districts could make s money contribution toe
wards the defence of the frontier agsinet the acsus, This
exempted thenm from military service there.ﬁ Loenraad con-
trivusted 40 ids, Coenrnad willem £0 Lds. and Johannes de
Luys & .daey L0 this funﬂ,e gach accordin; to hiu meung,

The lust we hesr of de buys Lefore his finsl de~
parture from the colony is his participation in the trial of
".wsade" kartha rerreira at George in 1813, The complaints

of head and ven dur semp led to an enguiry at the circuit

le we hufumeyr ifwintig Jaren . « « » « p 6,
o Collo730 warringu returns for o'dam 1811 and J'dam &7,
8 Jan, 1811,

Se UG Bofe Jeo Gl AeCeTe
4, srotoria.Eatate 0. 7878,
Ee Cele 17€2. iroclamantion 4 LRC 121c,
Ge Cole Biue Landts 1o C0le fe ¢ veCe 181L.
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Court of 1kll, which becane Known as the sluck Circuit.

The Ferreiras had been o ved from the vicinity
of Fort fredrick by the ordar of th. cutavian government
in 1EL3, owing to compleints made spuinaet them for their
fll-treatment of the coloured people.d i.H, Ferreira
and his wife hartha, were permitted 1o settle in the Longe
nloof witi & buther, lgnatius Ferreira.-

The trial of .sartha, at George, was one of the
bisgeat cuses ever tried by any court in the colony up to that
daza.s -he was &ccused of thu murder or meiming of
ten of her Sorvints anc was aid to have bee. driven from
Ler brother~inelaw's hamg because of her crueltye. whe
was the mother of ten children and appeared better educsated

Lan wes the rule for & farmer's daughter. n larger
number thah ususl atternded the proceedings “"so that the
silent attention which was paid by all did not 2 little
contribute to increase the svlemnity of this trial”. fThe
interest increased when she answer<d 240 interrogatories
“with that mamést, decent and at the sene tige feeling
deliberation and covolness which can slone procesd from
consclous f:noecence or from thoge hackneyed in w1l the ways
of hypocerisy anc deceit”

ne of the charges a;ainst her was buged on &
tale told to the miasionarieé by Lvenread de huys, who had
got the story from & kaffir who had come from ferrelra'’s.

The story was that sbout five years before ( L 1B0B) a
Kaffir ang two women came to his plice anu tLold him thut ddet
Ferreira's wife had veaten a hottentot girl, uriet, until the
bloou ran from her nose and mouth. -hen the wveldeornet
caing to investirste he foune the hut burned, «ith the girl in

it.
in his deposition du buys sald that he heard
l. Thesl Lelunge.onlst.boc.Vol.lil p.B2E. Complaintes of :ead

anc van ger .emp to kaj, van Gilten € Lay. 18L3.
ce Bit Be kesolution 4 Jﬁn’ 13&4, SialloToe

3o RECaaE1 0 VRA VARV TR 1ol B8CLURRy OTaEREnSERP IR A SR TY
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afterwaris thet the Incident of the burnt hut referred to
sachel and not to Griet.

when called as a witness, in the presence of the

sccused woman, de Luys gstuck to the truth of his ﬁepaaition%
Kost of the tales ageinst sartha Ferreira were found to be
exagrerated or witrue ang she sanswed to clear herself of
the most serious chargea,

Thia incident cannut have made de buys more
popular #ith his neighbours and scon after this he must
bhave left the colony for good. what his reasons were is
aifficult to discover. ke may have buun harassed by
petty troubles for a nunber of years, Game was getting
gcarcer, and in Jeptember 114 the game luws were Lo be
entorced strictly in the George dimtrict.z

it has been sugpested that there was still hope
t:at the Cape misht be restored to iis former owners when
peace cuma, but this hope was finally lost wher the Cape
wag ceded to «hgland on 14th August 1814, There
is just the pussibility that de »uys had heurd this news
before he left the colony, but more likely he had alresdy
left .corge before this date, unfortunately there are
no eurly Svorge records to be found, 80 we &0 not know
whether Coenruad had got into some trouble which he wished
to avolds +t 18 more lizely that be had Just got tothe
g8ttge where he had forgotten ithe more hezardous ‘side of his
early exile and only remembered his freedom from
restrictions, sothat he longed to yo ronmingvagain.

The best reason I found for his ueparture ias
given by Cempbell. In the Lons aloof hLe visited the
widow sondag &nd, "A boor there agquired if 1 knoew & voor
who was beyond the limit of the name of 'Bolch’ S who
1., ror the trixl of kartha Ferreira sue

Cods J0lle 31 cec. 1P1L & & Jan 1513,

Celie 108 (. de buys 13tk wiilneses 3 ‘cte 181E,
Celise 1845, 3 Lay, 1811, C.Je 363 kylagen :rocess
Verbual van der semp & swade aeleTo

Ss HECa Lelos VOleiXk Pe 197. 30 v.lap. 1814,
3. The way an .nglishoan would pobably spell the hace.



UNIVERSITY OF PRETORIA
YUNIBESITHI YA PRETORIA
C&y

-

=

w UNIVERSITEIT VAN PRETORIA
Qe

had married a (affre woman whom his friends so much despised
that he left the colony in disgust"l

Freviouasly Campbell had written "1 heard of a
boor at present In the colony who had lived & lony time in
Caffraria, where he married both a Caffre and a Hottentot.
un the inglish capturing the Capez, he returned to the colony
bringing alony with him his two wives and a @umbaokisagirl,
from the second nation beyond the Caffres. “his girl he
caused 1o be well educated, when he discarded hias Hottentot
end Caffre wives and married her"® This can only ref.r
to de Luys with whose affairs the missionurics would be
familiar through Lre van der kemp.

That de buys had married before his departure
is further supported by the faet thet he never once gave
the nemes of any wife or number of chiidren in his "opgaaf™
until 181Y when his wife's name appesrs - slizabeth.®  .as
she the mambookies girl, or the sister of Loselikatse, whom
he wag supposed 10 have murried in the colony’

20 at the age of about fifty two, and after trying
to live as a'Quiet und peaceful burgher" for e¢leven years
Coenr#ad returned to his roaming and began the mout lawless

reriod of his caraer,

1, 7Two ¥pJde note books in the ceae Librury Capetown
{Booka 1 & iil) wr. loyd told me that mook Il  was
destiroyed with the Gubbins collection in the fire
vt the w@itwatersrand University.

£ A naturel error.

3. van der kemp's journocl describes the wombookies as
living along the east coust beyond the Tambookies,
89 ec. 1799
plenhtensteints Travels Volel pe 367 says that the
colonists called the Gonaquas the tambookies

4. Cumpbell's Travels (lElB( p. 533. |

Eo Je 68, Upgaafrol a.CeTy 5o marriage record con be found.
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Reference Number Act

Vrou
Zonen
Dogteren

Hottentut dmnnen

" Jongens

" Vrouwen

" deigjes
Llaven

|b%agen of kar pearaen
Aantai _serden

Trek ossen

Aautees beesten
Hamels

Aarnteel Schapen
Bokken

diiden gars gezsald

o gars gewonnen
" turwe yezaeid
» tarwe gewodnen
» rogge gezaeld
" rogge pewunnen
wWijnstokken

Leggers wign
Lepgets brendewijn
Whgbns vl aarren

heam vau plastis

Aaru van pla.ts

Vorm van bBesit
Uren van Hoofdsted

District

100b

J.291

U

40

A

2Vdam

1006

Jd 292

30

69

1<0

1

14

40

R\

1607
J.503

10

1ol

L

u'Opkomst

over de
Cunga

Veecplaats

Leenings
4b

loVb

J.294

1€

> = O W

4V

el

177

106

1
u'Upkonst
Veeplauts

Lienings

40

1,09 1610
Je2086 J.206
¢ 2
16 3
9 4
6 4
1
1 2
o
40 P1e
6l 121
39u 95
177 27
2
1
6 ?
106 60
4U00
1l legper
4 leguer
1 El
atOpxounst Du Dooern
kivier
Veeplauts Lanavouw |
Leeninge | Leeninugs
40 3.
Z'dan Lldan

|

loll

J L8

-

10U

46

106

36

40

&
a'Opkomst
de¢ Docrn R.

Veeplasts
Landbouw
Albel
Leeninge

40 & 32

stdanm

lole
J.299

Cowﬁﬂbg l—&

1613
J.60

T.lizabeth

14
12

George /o

1277 _77ex)T oaeg)
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Veldkornetschap

Agter
lange Cluof

Agter
Lunge Clcof

Agter
Lange Clucf

Agter
Attaquas
Cloof

Lange &
Attaquas
Cloof

Tue above talle sbuws extractis from thne Swellendam and Geurge “"oygasfroiien®. In 1ule

Coenruad's nene uves ool egpesr in e Gwellendum roll &nd therc is no roil for

Geurge. 1n ine loOb roll Coenrnsc's neme has been Scored through. Tre years

ioUb a8 1006 are the smme snd Bleu the yesrs oy and 1loCP which shows how

unrcvlisble tuese figures are.
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CHAPTER VIl

Feyond thu (range siver and Lorthwardg. 1614 - 1ul6,

The northern frontier of the colony attracted as
many lawless charscters at this time as the vastern frontier
dlus & prohibited trade was cuorried on with the iriguas,
who uniike the more primitive tribes, used firear:s and wore
more or less  uropean clothing. The Griquss were composed
of' Hottentots and peuple of mixed descent, who were eatabiishe
ed at driguatosn(the old nlaarwater) under wr. anderson, of
the Lonoon sissionury woolety.

To the northwest of Origuatown lay the hounts of
the notorious bandit sfrikaner and to the scuth-cast was the
newly establlshed station Tor cushmen, Tooverberg (or
Toorenberg) under irs. it of uetn@ladarp.l rurther in the
interior lived Lhe vordous iribes of the bechuanas whom
travellurs reported 4s o peaceful people with many cﬂttlﬁ.&

411 these people were beyond the Jurisdiction of
the colonial government, Levertheless, the government kept
itself informed of what was happening thers, in the interests
“of thw saflety of the northern diatricis, The missionaries,
noturally, were expected Lo co-operate anc help keep tie pemug

Towurds the end of 1814 it was reported that thore
dwere kaifirs 4t the wroot slvier(urange) who mixed with
the people there and robbed the gushmens The veldtcornet
of Leekoe river begyed that the kaffirs might be driven away
"wyl het van het begin der waereld geen wooning van de
kafyirs 1s geweest om die reeden zoo ben ik ¢r niets Goeds
van te wagte'.
le CO 1473 Letter LeOe to umite 26 July,lnldd. rermission

to begin at Toorenberg” Ad T.
2. wwe Travels of Lichtenastein & ¢ in .ece CoCo twjorts of

somervillie anc Truter 18ul & Colonel Collins 1E(2.
3e CU 1476, Lettur Col. to nuderson 17 Jan, 1B17. ~.CTe
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in adaition, he compluined that the burghers went without
his permiasion to the missionury at the Crancg rivwr.l

The colonial office replivd thui they could not
allowy an attacx on the kaffirs coming from the bavisansge
river to the Grange, unless they molested the colonists or

e The chivf of these

entured coloniul territory.
alragglers were unour the leadersbip of Uols (or xolu) and

SAntLer.

The exact date of de ruys' departure frow Jeorge
cannot be fixed. ¢ yuve in his lsat " opgeal" in 1913,
this uveually beln: taker in the fiygt guarier of the year.
~arly in 1218 Cuyler, landdrost at Ultenhage,bud heerd
the de .uys sas among the xoffirs again, having entered
xafrirlend from the dleuweveld,where he had luat liveﬁ«s
He had been pecompanied by another colonist, who had re-
turned, leavirg hie famlly with de buyse Luyler warns
the lanadrost of Graaff einet, :ischer, thut de cuys is
a ganyercus choracter and suggests that the cezuldenhouts
at vavisan's river might be discreetly aoun@aﬂ, as he
BuspeCts thal they know of the mutter anu could say where
ke could be fcun&.4
at the end of the month »lacher, wsho hud visited
the Teble wountain on the border, reported thiat the .ev.
wre hirchera had heard from Kre snderson, who was then in
Lupatown, thut his people coming from the Urange river
statenu trut Coenraad de puys with senteer and other
kaffirg was thdre.r |
sheth.r de buys had falleh in with the band and
1. Gradite 162, iwport of Veldctededs vedeuwslt Lo iandte.
24 lLiove 1Bl4. aeCaT.
Lo CO 1474, Letter Celle Lu iBNGL. Jalie Plschers 13 JanlflSs,
3 mf.&:%‘féfmu;r -~ iwintig varen ... poge 6, .ays de buys
was a fermer from Lesufort «vst, &s the district waa
later culled.
4, lagters ek, beleoVe Lefbbranct p. 783 . ietter J.6
Cuyler to iandt. fischers 16 van.l:l8. 7The original
culinot be founu as thu baexk of the Vole in which it

should huve appueuared bus been damagod.
Es LU 165. Lotier ilscher 10 Co0ekB Jun,lElEeneCoTe
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persuades them L0 BOVe 10 the Lrange, or whether he had
sluply sccompunied thew on thelr wey, lo difiicult to say.
wtockenstrom discovered later, that Lantzer had “conducted"
de buys to the Orange enc thut 4 colonist, ;avid de roker (de
tooker) had accompanied him helf way and then turned back.
This de Aooker, however, intended to rejoin him again and
had given santeer ameuniiion to conauct hin to de buya.l

in xay 116 the nlssionary omit st Toverberg wrote
that bia settlement was &« fallure, as the bushren sers suse
pleioue, and said"that the missionuries were only come among
them to betray them to iﬁﬁ coloniauls", omit wished to leave
and founu a gimilur institution in the colaﬁy.2 Cosnraad
de wuys has buven accused 01 wrecking this statiana, but 1 can
find no direct proot of thiss Hot & singlie missionary
mentioned him in this conmecvion although it is possible
thathe may have instigated the kaffirs who were disturbing
the atationin .ecember 1815.4 wimit's motherein-law gave
evidence later that the institution was broken up in 1E19
by "boors"” who took children away in their waprrons and whose
repregentutions caused the landdroan te bresk up the
institution.é This wae long after de suys had left these
parts,

at the end of 1816 the event, knowm as the wlagter's
Nek iebellion took placu. (n eomparing this rising with |
the van Jearsveld rising in 1799 it is surprising how much
they have in common. Their methods of procedure,their aims,
thelir waths snd thelr ailies, ihe kufiirs, are all reminiscent
of the former avents. This may be due to the fact that the
participunts were in both caseg the same people, Or s0ns
of the previous rebelu. ne of the ringlsaders @&a Cornelis
Eubﬂr, Coenyaag's old ally in kaffirland. The governtent
le SO ZUB Lottur Ae LL0CKENBLIOM 1O Lelie <P July181lE,4.CWT
2o CO 1BB Letter ae ctockeustrom 1o Ce0s 30 88y, 1BLlOe ACaT
Je Bene swulker, .outh ofrican Liatory, pagu 168,

4, €O 188, Letter Landt. rischer tu CeUs €3 20,1816, &eCoT
Be Bluc ook 1835+ pe 174 nvidence of .Trs.Solomon saretz.
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becane doubly anxious to trace de ouye when these plots
becose known. Prom Us, tain sndrewh .ost on the Fish
river, kajor frascr «r0te that the rebels expected to be
Joined by a large nunter of kaffirs and¢ that Cornelis
Faber and Coenraad de puys were reilsing them, de puys hav-
ing been in kaffirland for over five mﬁﬂthﬁcl

1f this was true,de buys must heve left the Urange
river agein, but probably the rebels -e¢re merely tr&&ing
on hiis nume, asg otocqenstrom said later thot if de bBuys
had known of the rising he would bave teken part in it.
at the exacination of the rebels ifabur cunfessed thet
Johannes bezull®nhout and hothma had wished to go to  the
vpange river, but ke «ld not think that they wished to
Join de iuys, 28 he @nd dezuidenhout had never been able

3 This wes the same Lezuldene

10 toleratu ¢ach other.
hout whom de ruys had accused of beating Joaika's kaffir to
deaths Eezuidenhout himself was shot dead in kaftfirland
when trying to reaist capiure,
a Tew months later Jtockenstrom heard of de Buys'
whereabouts from a hottentot of the Lethelsdorp institue
tion, who had accompanied the mission.ry .vans to rleére
watuer. lie hud met de Luys out hunting, a day's Journey
veyond the institution. e Buys made many enquiries about
the colony and ashed if any "boors" were comin: to join
him 68 he was expecting some. The Klaarsater pucple told
him that de .uys lived about three hours ride 4 from their
krual and he had 8 number of sorannas anc cushmen with him,
ve Buys, they sald, hud done everything in his power to
perauade the people of the school to Join him. e said
that the missionuries would Letray them Lo the government
and they would be sent to the colony as soluiers. Thie
le Ceda 333&. Letter .ajesirager to landteurahaemstonn
16 hove L8184 eCeTe

e @nd 4e CO 174 Letter »e stockenstrow to Ce0. & Zarch
1816, Leibbrendt in "Blagters sek" gives a poor copy
ot this lettor -« his version is three hundared yards

for three hours ride,
3¢ Coede 3308, rxamination of Cornelis iraber.
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made them uneasy ond they wanted to leave, ie. buys had
tried to buy ampunition from anderson. The missionury
thought it dan;erous for wp. avans to o L0 «atakao on
account of the impression mide on the saviyes by de cuys.
vtockenstrom feurvd thut those banished from uraaffeieinet
after the olagtursiek events would be 100 near de suys 1t they
woere dllowed Lo go to the Tulbegh Ghoup, as they 1ntanded.l

wtockenstrom was commended for this discovery of
de ruys®' hiding place, bul as this wis outside the bounda-
ries the landdrost at Tulbagh would simply huve to keep a
closu watch on his movenents. if he entered the colony and
cosused any disturbance, or broke the luws, he could Le arrest-
ed and brought tefore the proper courts of law,"

i de buys had rewained there pcacefully he might
have been ignored, but he made further trouble, The
bagrards had always carried on barter »ith lawless colonists
in an uncbtrusive fashion,. In de buys they found a more
daring leaders The hendrik's and Goeyman's fumilies and
othura, JOiﬂuﬁ.hi%Q, B prwcurﬁd firearms on the borders
of thé colony and even threatened the Insticution it&ﬁlfs
in the hopes of getting mmmunitionoﬁ

svockenstrom feared trouble, 48 the tUriquas, if they
ran short of cattle, would trude with the tribes faxther in
the interior, which might gilve rise to dlsputes, vspecially
a3 the peuce had already been broken by Coenracd de huya.7

kig fears were Justified, for aocon uafter they
formed o comirhndo under de buys &nc plundered « nuaber of
le Cetie 1744 Letitur wtockenstrom to C.U. 88 Warch,l8l6. AT,
Se LUelie 14764 ietiur Csle to stuckenstrom 19 April 41816s #4CeT,
3 Co0s 14754 Letter Lo0e to JuH, Flahery 19 spril, 1816¢ 4eCsTe
4, wlue rook 1835 p. 21ld. Aelville's heport - Luys is
. misprinted "byrgs" - see J. Orpen, reminiscences p. 191,
5. Ceve 184, Letter anderson 1o utocxanatrom, 6 June 181l6.44CeT
6. Colia 1444 Lord. Che. comers¢t to Colonial ~eCTetnry

e} dun, 18170 ivaCaTe .
7. LQUQ 1?‘10 lu*‘o"ttzhf MtOCka!lstl“Om t’:i L.'Ul 19 ‘40;;',191&' ﬂ’Cﬁ?ﬂ
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cattle from a ﬁriaqu&liﬁaahu&na) tribe lying east of
Lithakeo, shooting three of the tribe and wounding one®.
angderson was severly reprimanded for this, it bein,; pointed
out to him thut this event "had been anticipated from cole
lecting so muny Indolent and ill-disposed people together
where Lhuere was no sort of social compuct Lo pestruin them'.
he was regueated to prevent people fluakiﬁg'ta the institution
Lo the cetriment of the furmers lubour supply ond told
thet it should not be against his principles to return rune
away slaves by forces 8 & result of the "atrocious murders®
of the commando, the chiefs at .ithakao had refused to lat
ary Lvans take up mission.ary work smony thum.‘
«0ffat ascribes cvans' fallure even more directly
10 de Duys. he altirme thut tefore the missionuries arrived
de¢ buys ‘had gone tu the vicinity of the Yellow?(veal) and
Eart rivers andlhaﬁ intercourse with the kechuanas. “"Into
their ~inds he diffused his principles, which were hostile
to the Colonial Hovernment, and succeeded In making willing
convertsy, Among them was &othibi's(the chief's) brother,
This rman was at Lithako while the missionuries were there,
and it was through his influence that they were rejected.
itis sume person, in returning to the Hart riwer, probably
to anﬁounca Lo Buys his success in opposiny the settlement
of teachers at Lithake, wus ahot dead by the poisoned arrows
ol Lhe &uahmmn"ﬁ.
An account of these doulngs was sent Lo the Colonial
secretary with compluints against the misclonuries and
Coenraad wns described a#s "a Colonist lony known for his
1. CoOo 128 Letter head Lo Co0e 4 iecl.lE1l7, "Corannas call
the bootchuanas briquasa®. Burghell's Travels Voll.p.364.

2 Co0y 184, Letter anderson Lo stockenstrom 28 NOvelBlE.4.GT
(uee B8ls0 ieCe Uele YOle AL pe w8)

Se Coeiie 1476 Lotter o0 10 inderson 17 Jan 1B17. A.CeTo

4. #offet himsel! calls tne Yellow the Urange river(kise
sionsry Laboura p. &5#7) but he must have meant between
the hart sand the vaal(Yellow from its colour).

burchell Yole 1 pe 391 Lalls the Vsal the Yellow river,
Be i wOffat iissionury LADOUrS + « o o o o w3ce
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rebellious . isposition and bad hubits, who has for many
yerrs been & vury Llstinguished (haractur among the Lige
affected on the frontiera".l

anderson returned & very meek reply to this letter
of reprimand, promised to take up runaway sleves and said
he had succeeded In petting those who had committed the
”aﬂtragoua act" in company of de Buys Lo return and promige
ocbudience in tho future., They had returned the stolen
cattle, which he Intended 1o restore to the owners.

vl the author of all the mischief he writes,
"Coenraad Buys hus removed 8o fur sway thut | have no knowe
Jedge of his present situation".a #hure he had "removed"
to is 4difficult to say.

The kalfirs under Gola and lantzer were still giving
trouble, 1t being reported thut Gola's kaffirs had guns
which were aaid to have been sent by the missing Coenraad
de ruys. Twe kraals over the Urange river were going to Join
Gola &nd murder the ﬁhriatinaa.a The veldkornet who reported
this was suid 1o be very friendly with Lantzer and with him
iived de Kooker who was to have joined de huysé, 80 the report
is not vury trustworthy.

The followin;: year stockenstrom discovered that Gerrit
tezuidenhout and Frang Lebuschagne were trading with deserters
and kaffirs in kaffirland, 50 he travelled to the frontier
and selzed these two men &s he felt sure thuat de ~uys could
net Le fur off, nor ignorant of iezuidenhout's plans. He
wiag deturnined to discover what intercourse might exist between
them and to try and capture de buys ,"in order to prevent
the cslumities which might resultl from the machinations of
such unprincipled characters in concert with the nastardﬁ"&.
It wus discovered however, that the two treders were connected
1eCelie 14404 Letter Lorde Cheooomerset to narl of bathurst

23 Jan, 1817. ACWTe '
2eCeCa 187, lLetter anderson to Ce0. 20 darch 1817, AWCeT,
341039 neleTe Hoodies xene Notes Lottur Veldteornel Jeveds

seathuyzen to canddrosts ..J June 1817. a.CeTo
4.Covect® Letter Stockenstrom to C.oe 20 July,l81l8en.CeTs

54C.0, 308 Letters stockenstrom to C.0. 14th & 16th July,1818
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with the deserters for profit, and not for treasonable
purpuses, and no further mention of de buys was made in
this couﬁaccian.l

After the arrvat of these two men stockensirom
travelled on to the Orange river, where he was to meet
andersones The latter arrived and told Jtockenstrom how
disaffected his people had Lecome through the'machinations®
of Coenraad, who assured them that the yovernment allowed
the missionaries to live among then so that they aight be
“seduced into the Colony and made .oldiers of"s  Le had
further instilled into thelr minds “that they should consider
themgelves entirely independent of the Government, as a
weparate natlon, atrong enough to defen. themselves™. He
told them that people on the Lorders of the colony would
supply them with guns and ammunition and persusded them
that he could make gunpowder hinself. in adéition to
sprendin: these doctrines, he had sgain been raiding the
tribes, taking "en immense number® of cattle, which he shared
witlh those who helped bhim,

«tockenetrom then went on 1o driguatown to exhort
the people there, aﬁ& to wet thelr sasistance in capturing
de puys, who was living about 140 miles north-sast of the
station, &g he did not wish "to risk the ferucra in thias
attempt”. At Griguatoen his thrests and exhortations hsd
the effect of meking the Lastards promice to assist in the
ca,ture of de kuys. He discovered thut Coenraad had buen
at the Grangs river with el sht horses the day before he
crooaed,y saylng that he was joing Lo the frontier to feleh
a friends On hearing of ostockenstrom's approach he éepartm%
taking with him several runaway slaves, who might otherwlse
have been caught.

“ne of the bastards then proposed that it would
1, Cals 208 Letter stocsenstrom to CoC. L1 wep 1ELE and

wede U3¢ case of bosulaenhout bnd Labuschagne at
Graaff ceinet.
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be best 17 they went after him themselves, as they could
pretend to be fleelny bLefore otockunsirom, anc s0 teke him
UNAWATres . This trick was agreed to. *Though 1 did not
approve of this plan 1 was obliged to submit to it as my
strength wa8s exhausted by the long Joumey which obliped me
L0 maxe the Leat of ﬁy’Wﬂy back « leavin: the basterds with
the best promises thut they should take carce wuls should be
sent irisoner to the Colony. wopether with all the slaves he
‘has been hmrbauriu;".l

Jhortly after, Cupide Kok brouyght back an account
of their afforts. e buys knowing, or suspecting, that he
was 1o be tuken fled further northe After pursuing him
four daye journey beyond his "home" his company was overtaken,
# surprise attack falled, ss the dogs bLarked and some children
#ho went to feteh wator before duybrean gave the alarm, e
Buys and Arandg then cane armed to the walur pluce and some
of the commando demanded his surrerders  De Buys begged they
would not fire yet ancg fled to his encampment, Four of the
commando Tired after him and arend fired bLback wounding a bughe
mane 1t wws found that he had many people with him, both
Bechuanas and pPughoen so that the commando beling too few in
number, gave up the attempt - as anderson feared chiefly from
8 luck of coursge and unanimity. They promised, however,
to go again in a larger budy.a

otockenstrom deplored this lost o;portunity, as no
better chance was likely to ocour. he was of opinion "that
the misasionsries Anderson and resd ( ot huruman) should be
called upon to persuade the Saveges among which they live to

deliver up to the Government so daigérocus & ch&r&ctar"4.

le Cells 208s Letier otockenstrom to Cele £7 aug 1818, heleT.
e carginal nove on copy ~ "A sluve belongin. to I.de Lurger”
3e Cole UlBe Lutter anderson to Jtockensirom € sep lELE Al C.T,
8y C.0w 208, Letter ostoccenstrim 10 Cele o LCL 1818 AsCaTy
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in reply to this report s rewurd of lU00 kde was
once mora offered {or Coenrasd de zuys.l

The account of thwirvjaurneyﬁ further, as given by
Coenraad's son mich&el‘, beywins from this polint and hé.
descrites this Incident of the communde with certain variae
tions on Cupido's stury., The event is madé to.take place
at ths Crange river and their pursuers were white police
officlals eand some of the Cape Corps. The events took
place when sLichuel was ﬁ ehild and were retold when he was
an ol@d man. wome events he had merely veen told of, and
others he aciually witnessed. it is therefore impossible
tu place any r-llance on his details,or on the order in
which he gives the events. His story is useful however as
e rives toe nanes of chiefs, trives and kraals they visited
80 that one hus some ifoea of tha rround they must have
covered in their wanderings. |

Aceording Lo «ichuel they went to soroko after this
incident. #oroko wis then living st Xunwana in the scatern
Tr&ﬂgvaals, where they rewalned until the saffirs harvested
thelr commn. in areh anderson had heard thut de buys had
attacked a tribe, ths sacqueen, but had not plundéred much
cattla.4 These were probably the hakwens at Kolobeng.
Thelr next host was aulimatsani(%alitaanes) angé from him they
went westwards to Legourcetze (%)

In June 1819 anderson heard from surumen thst the
sorannas from #alipletze(?) bhud reported thet de suys, his
wife and children, people and sluves, had been murdered by
the sorapoclamns” - (probably the Larsmapulana in the
1. Co0e 1447 lLetler L40. to stockenstrom, .2 et 1818,
Ze e gé%&ﬁ&r. Twintig Jaren « « ¢« pe 6 to 14.

3. e HOffat wissionury Labours s « ¢ Pe Jdie
4e Ceve 206 Letter ~nderson te otocienstrom 4 .arch 1819,

Be dataung chief - hiu ancestral lands lay nerth of
Lasgtoland, £, dalker - History « « « pe 232
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- «Outpansbergen) as de Buys had been moving eust to a people
who were sald to h&yé clothe8e Tic report wig aguain
denied,but firmly beliév&d by the ied &ﬂffiral and the
chief &t ruruman. anﬁersén too was convinced of its
truth.~

soon after, the missionaries from huruman met arend
end two other slaves, who stid tﬁut they had left de cuys
and_ on accouni of his cutrageous conduct,they mirht expect
to hear of his murder soon. He was on his wey to the east
or north-cast. rend had some linen which he had got from
& tribe he hud vigited, who said that there were white people
in & tuwn two days journey furth&r.a rrom the dute, this
mugt have buen at celagoa bay, aa.white peuple did not iive
at . ort Kutsl until 18Z3. |

The report of de buys' death spread far and wasg
bﬂlievéd by the nutivea, <tartjle, one of van der hemp's
old puplils in ruffirland in 1799, told that "buls wandered
about amony the tribes, murdering eand plu dering until he
himsel! was mufaﬁred“4»

~e buys must have abandoned his efforts to go east

for in 1840 he was with ﬁaﬁpa, the chief of the hangw&katae%

north of the iolopo river in what is now ﬁechuanaland-e
agcurding to C&mpbel;, wakaba had invited de buys to visit
him, promising him two or three out posts of caittley on his
arrival he only received thirty oxen, which he refused as
being tou few, Nakaba therefore deileined him there by
vresenting him with two oxen to kill, who said that he must
not leavy melita; This device was resorted to each tinme
de cuys atempted to leave 8o he was virtuaily a priaoner.7

le wmaller cnsuto tribes - Lee Trigordts wisry.

Lo Leiie C86B. letter .nderson to Jtuckenstros 7 June 1E1B.A.CeT

Se ibid & Ju1y 1819.
4., .tephen &y - [ravels « - p 382.

5 & 74 Jo Cozmpbell. Travel's Vol.ll p. 141 & 14, July &2
6. he Woffats dissionary - = = Ds 3B6,
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Joon after otockensirom was gent to regort on the
Griqua and the Bechuana, He was told Lo try and see de
&uys;anﬁ offer him a purdon if he should appear capable and
willing to give useful infornation about the interior, and
if he"had not by recent outrages rendered himself unwurthy
of mercy“.l
ﬁtoékenatrum ¢id not get an interview Lut sent the
following report R
"All I could collect about Coenrasd buls that can
be considered authentic s, that after fiying from the Grie
quas in 1818, he remained for soms time with a Bootchuana
chief culled ﬁibban&l? who, understanding that be got his
flock of 1400 cattle by plunder from the Gokali a misprint)
took the half; and buls flying, on the¢ seconu report that
the Grigques were pursuing nim4. went 80 far up the country
that he had easy aml frequent commnicetion with the esstern
cosst; and that when kr. Campbell went up to Currachane®
about three¢ or four months ago, be, buis, was a prisoner
with +akeba, chief of the <Jenketzens, who releused him on
tearing of the approech of white ven,whom buls had address
envussh o make Hakab& buliuvve would revenge what he suffered,
1 was sorry i could not see thls wanderer. e hag travele
led a great deal, and can glve the most useful iniormation.
he 15 guite wornm out by the restless life he hus been cobliged
t6 lead, hunted from one tritve to another aftér his ammunition
wug exhausted, exposed to the inclemency of the weather
end extrueme Tatigue, without a single horse,. “He hus lost
the use of one side,and is really wretcheds 1 communicated
le & 2, Blue bLiook 1EIE, rart 1 p. l3l. otockensirom's neport
13 Lepte 1BEG. :
3. Jebonella, barolon, chief witn whom %easleyans l'odgson
and Broadbent worked near Yellow Liver. Ro doffat,
kisslonary Labours p. 4l4.
4, A vegue report or a second pursuit hud reached him and

made him fly - ibid dtockenstrom's report.
6+ hurrictane, Chuenyane or surrichean,
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to him his mxcellency's gracious plessure Ly a letter which
the Bootchuana chief Chakko undertcok to deliver; anc if

he avuils himgelf therecf his sons might be of incalculsble
gurvice to any one undertsking discoveries in africa”.

There are tws mure accounts of de Luys actusl
situation with kakaba., Campbell wrote, "buys, the africener,
is reported to sleep little, being alwaye ufreid of an attack
upon his life. e hes three guns, which he keeps beside him,
unc¢ hos veught his wife how to load them, that, &han attacked,
he may have only to fire. lie is a miserable mun, and his
Turidly are cagtives with hime. Had we accepted of Lakkebbas
fnvitation to visit him »t selita, it is vory probable the
whole purty would have been d@tain&ﬂ".l

A brighter pleture case frow arend, who was found
sgain by George Thompson.  he stild that he had visited
Kokabas ehief town, welita," and that the notorious outlaw
Conrad buys was living in ease and safety in nakabbes dominions
apd hid received from him, on his arrivel, & present of
rifty head eof cattlﬁ"%

In aupgust 1821 the lust misslionary report of de nuys
comes from otephen hay, who had forwarded a letter from
stockenstrom to him.. "Cube i3 now &t dangwatoo s large town
inhabited by the “aquanas, six or elght days journey north

3

east of K.Chean™ hig wagpon wheel having broke, according to

the most recent intellipence he halted there In order to

repalyr the old or cake & new onae but he appears to be still
. 4

bent upon procsediny yet further into the interior®.

This {5 the lest official report we have of his
movaisents, and Trom her: one weé have only tiie recollections
le Jo Campbell's Truvels Vol LI (1BZZ2) p.lde,

2o George Thompson iravels . o o p clil. arene Tinally pure
chaged his freedom by sending fvory Lo Capetown pe «CGe
3. Kongwato may be Bamengwato near shoshongi saquanss may be
rakwena? L.Chean is Lurrichane or Chuenyane.

4. 1941 soodiee MS.. Notes, lLetter ostephen hay to stockene
strom 9 ﬁug.lﬁgl. el eTe
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of «ichuel which were written down forty to £ifty years
luter, after lesving wexabs they returned to Legouroetze,
where they wished to remein. They sowed crops there., Their
cattle had been left with koroko to whom de buys had

aleo “iven a wiyyron.,  Searly all their horses had dled.
sfer atine Legouroetze's kaffirs tried to steal thelr

cattle anc Elehuel describes a skirmish in which about ten

of the tribe were shot. They escaped and weni on to
watjouseleh(Lokwaseld the fother of uachﬂli(uﬁenela}.l

here Coenrand left his brood ong went on & pack-ox
1o logk &t the lasu of the %&mﬁngwat&.g sw returned and
took them there to the chief whose nuse was n'Shadi, hiere
they were kept untll thelr hut (hartbeesthuisje) w#ss almost
completeds (Ferhaps picheel was thinking of the weit for a
new waysgon wheell,

Leaving s'ghadl they went wlons the Linpopoe and,
after travelling for five days slong the river,their mother
died of fevers “Hy (myn vader) wés zeuvr bedroefd over het
v.rlies van onze moeder, &n aprex ons in zyne droefheld san,
dat hy ohs dasr zou laten, wij moesten niet verder het land
ingean, en ook niet terug. Hy 2eide nog dav de blanken
nederhuid zouden komens Lo Heer zou voor ond «orgen. Le
volgende morgen vonden wy hem niety, hy was ﬁiwn‘nacht
vertroxken® .o

This disa; penrance, waking hi@ ey ag mysterious
us most of his life had been, wiuld have been a fitting
conclusion for this lover of lawless freedom, bHut there is
an anticlimax « his children did not believe him dead.

about this tlme tbhe Kantatee inveslions were
1. mekwenu chiefs sl Kolobengs

“e hound Lhoshonie
3¢ e Hofmayre Twintig Jaren « « o o p Do
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cuusing great unrest smony the tribves
aud «ulu wurs caused repercussions among all the tribes,
80 that the youno de ruyses had a degperate struggle for
eXistence, They went completely unatvive until many years
later, when they asked for the services of a miaaianaryk.
They acted &8 interpret-rs for such travull@ré as
Harrie, .mith and baines, none of whom make mention of their
ancestry. umith when visiting koselikatse near the
iarikwa river, »rites "at one pluce the road skirted the
receing of a very large panalitl krasl, which nhad, many
years aygo, heen destroyed at the instigation of and by the
pursonal assistance of Conrad kuys, & man who by his abomine
able and unprincipled conduct entailed more suffering upon
the native trives of couth africa than can casily be de-

acrited®, 3

This {8 rather strong when we compare de
~uy8' escapades with the havoee creatuu oy the ehiefs Chaka
or kosellkatse at that time. strungely enougyh umith mekes
no meniion of de .uys' son baba, who, according: to Lﬂr?iﬂég
accompanied this exjyedition. Harris himself calls Laba a
converted bechusna, domestic of the american missionary near
surrichane Mountains; bsba acted as interpreter for him at
~oselikutge's kraal-s

Trigardt cume across Doris and uabriel in the
Loutpansbergen and Gabriel took a message to Lourenco ilrques
for him.e They were also met by Lronkhorst's p@aple’,
members of rotgleter's party who wure exploring. sgain we
have no reference made to their father - apparently no comzent
was needed,
ls vouti: «frican Journal rurt 1 p 76 & 77 and sart 11 p.173
2. lnkomende trieven Julle/iec, 1lB¢L. Firetoris archives.
3e Lre As wimithe heport of .xpedition « « « = « § JWRG,IR%»
4o wele Harris « willdsportd « « « peBB
Ee ibia pelZ3e
6, Trigardts lairy EU Lec, 1836,
7o Jo Lhiage, [@L:l .apers p.73. Lronkhorst calls Jebriel,

rarals
2. Letter Michael Buys to Rev. NcKidd 2 Dec. 1862.
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Thomus bBuines tells of a hulfcaste waggon driver
Toris (Dorist) who died of fever near Hartley nill. hear
huere, Loo they found the "ruins of a house thet had been cccu=-
pled by « white man 45 or 850 years ago"(written in 1&70)1.
Could this have Leen onv of de buys' stopping places %

dhen the Trekkers settled in the Transvaal, the
Buys Volk, as thuy were called, assoclated themselves with
them and became thelr waggon drivers anc assistants in monaging
the kaffirs.” They becsme dissatisfied bucsuse they were
not given more rights and decluec to go to sortuguese territory,
but were forced Lo abandon the abtampt.a

The reason for thelr choice of destination is that
they belleved that Coerrsad hud married again and that a
gasughter of this Union hud wmarried a rortuguusw¢4 o
certain Jan Kemers (or John (hambers) who had married one of
the huys women,was sald to have gone to the rortugusss
territory 1o investigate, and reported that Comnraad
had oarried in sofela, a woman from Goa.5 eriding theme
selves on thelr suropean blood.some of the buyses belleved
that he had married a white woman.e

The truth of these beliefs cunnot be established »
but the story, sc in keeping with his previous record of
mysterious marrisges, is likely to peraist until definite
proofs are found to enable us to reconstruct the cloasing

scene of thia strange chargeter's life,

ls The Baines - Gold begions ol c.ne nirica p. 38,

Ze we Hofmeyr. Twintig Jaren « -« « -« = p 1o & 13,

Se P e irellers Jketse en Upstelles pe 110,

4, o lofmeyrs. Twintig Joren « « « « « p, 9,

Be urs G rreller has glven me the name of ire Jeo Grobler
of iLouls Trictardt as his authority for this statsment

6. blue Look - 1E3S p 64, The detalls of this report were
collected by officlals of the Native »sffairs lept, from
descendants, :
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